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Members of the Tommeginer aboriginal tribe lived on the

Fossil Bluff coastline until early 1841. These people did not
move far inland as the area w/as heavily timbered so their diet
consisted mainly of seafood. The rock fish traps they used
remain evident on the Fossil Bluff tidal foreshore today.

In 1798 George Bass and Matthew Flinders sailed their sloop
"Norfolk" through Bass Strait, to discover that Van Diemen's
Land (later Tasmania) was not connected to New Holland

(later Australia) and on this voyage they named the large
promontory (170 metres) Table Cape, which has now become
the local landmark.

The Cape had huge stringy-bark eucalyptus gum trees with
base girths of up to 12 metres which have since been stripped
and the beautiful red loam uncovered has been most suitable

for the growing of potatoes, peas, onions and corn and the
raising of sheep and cattle and more recently the cultivation
of poppies, pyrethrum and tulips.

Henry Hellyer surveyed the area in 1827 and named the
Inglis River after a Van Diemen's Land Company Director,
John Inglis. This company was then a large landholder in the

north-west corner of Tasmania.

In 1853 the first of several timber mills was constructed

and trade with Victorian ports became buoyant during the
Victorian gold rush and the area provided much needed
timber and produce, exported from Wynyard on the Inglis
River and Port Maldon on the Cam River.

In 1971, James "Philosopher" Smith discovered the Mount
Bischoff ore body, some 50 kilometres south of Wynyard,
where, by 1877, the mining town of Waratah had become
established and it prospered from the riches of the largest

tin mine in the southern hemisphere until the mine's closure
in 1947.

In 1993, the municipalities of Waratah and Wynyard were

merged into the Waratah-Wynyard Council municipal area
covering 3,532 square kilometres.

Best of My Backyard, Open Winner - Mary VIney



Best of My Backyard, Hign Schoot Winner - Monte Boviil

OUR COUNCIL VISION

Waratah-Wynyard municipality wili continue to be a thriving
and prosperous municipality, \«ith opportunities for all.

OUR COUNCIL MISSION

Waratah-Wynyard Council will work to create an
environment where its peopie can prosper and take
advantage of the municipality's unique advantages to the
benefit of the community.

OUR COUNCIL VALUES

Good Governance:

We will have open, accessible and accountable governance in
touch with the existing and changing needs of our community.

Fairness and Responsiveness:
We will ensure that all people are treated with dignity, respect
and fairness. Our staff is critical to the achievement of our

goals and we are committed to their continuing development.

Service Exceiience:

We are here to serve our community and will strive to meet

its needs through the provision of service excellence based
on a continuous improvement approach.

Continuous Improvement:

We will continually look for ways to improve our services to
enhance community benefit.

Communication and Engagement:

We will deliver accurate, timely and relevant information
involving the open exchange of ideas and information with
the community.

Environmental Sustainabiiity:
We aspire to become environmentally sustainable and
maximise opportunities for all people and future generations
to enjoy social and physical well-being.

Leadership:

We will effectively advocate the needs and aspirations of
the community.



A WORD FROM THE MAYOR

Hello to everyone and welcome to the Waratah-Wynyard
2011/2012 Annual Report.

As I approach my second year as Mayor of our great
municipality, I look back with enormous pride at the

achievements of our enthusiastic dedicated group of
staff, both inside and outside workforce, contractors and

Councillors. Thank you all for your enormous contributions
over the past year, it certainly has not passed unnoticed. It is
mentioned to me quite often by members of the public that
they are very appreciative of the efforts from you all, which

help make our municipality a great place to be.

Achievements over the past year have been outstanding,
with Wynyard announced as the winner of Tasmania's Tidiest

Town 2011/2012. As the current title holder, we will host this
year's entrants for the announcement of the 2012 state
winner in November, which is another great opportunity to
showcase what we have to offer.

It is also with great pleasure that I congratulate the Wynyard
Transfer Station operators, Vincent Industries, who also were

successful at the Tidy Towns Awards, taking out the State
Resource Recovery and Waste Management Operation Award

- well done to their staff for this effort.

ANZAC Day and Australia Day activities throughout our
municipality were delivered with great enthusiasm and I
thank those organisations involved for the pride they took in
these events.

Last year our annual Bloomin' Tulips Festival proved to be
one of the most popular and well attended events to date.
This had huge spin off effects for our municipality and I look
forward with anticipation to this year's event being even
bigger and better.

The reconstruction of the Wynyard Wharf will establish one
of the greatest assets of this municipality for many decades
to come. There will be more to report on the completion of
this structure in our 2013 Annual Report.

Our resource sharing arrangement with Circular Head
Council is really achieving its expected results, with the
appointment of specialised staff in areas that neither Council
could have afforded previously. These include areas where,
as employers, we are obligated to provide services or which
improve the delivery of services to the community.

Other significant milestones for the Council over the

past twelve months include the approval of the 103-lot

subdivision at the Seabrook Golf Club, the award of the

tender for the reconstruction of the Wynyard Wharf and the
approval for the installation of light towers at the Wynyard
Recreation Ground. Council has also been active at a regional

level, initiating joint meetings between Waratah-Wynyard,
Circular Head and Burnie City Councils to advance the
sharing of resources, opposing the creation of a single water
entity and supporting the Cradle Coast Authority's position
for balanced development in the Tarkine.

At the Council level we have adopted an updated Emergency
Management Plan and Young Persons Strategy and
developed a Transport Infrastructure Asset Management
Plan, Tourism Development Plan and a Cam River Reserve

Landscape Development Plan.

That's about all from me for this report and I close by saying
that we have a great area around us, this is a great place to
live, let's enjoy what many other places around the world look
at with envy. Have a safe journey wherever you may gol

i/j. tJMf.
Cr Robert (Robby) Walsh

MAYOR



MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS

Cr David Moore was elected

to Waratah-Wynyard Council
in October, 2000, serving
until 2009 and re-elected

in October 2011. He has

represented Council on Bush

Watch, Somerset Indoor

Recreation Centre, Frenchs

Road Nature Reserve

and the Railway Institute

Restoration committees.

Now retired, his career

includes experience as an

Industrial Chemist and a self

employed Service Station

and Garden Centre Operator.

David is a Bench Justice, on

the Board of Management
of Burnie TAPE College and

President of the Tasmanian

Nurseryman's Association.

David has been a member of

Wynyard and Emu Bay Apex
Clubs and a past President

and life member of Somerset

Rotary Club. An active

participant in community

groups, David is involved
with Somerset Promotions,

Somerset Traders and Cam-

Somerset Neighbourhood
Watch. He has been

Chairman of the Wynyard

Tourism Group, Wynyard

Chamber of Commerce and

served on the committees

of the Tulip Festival and
Wynyard Bowls Club.

David lists his interests as

family, Tasmania, travel, food

and wine, gardening, politics
and lawn bowls.

Councillor John Smith was

elected to Waratah-Wynyard

Council at a by election

in February 2010. He has

resided at Flowerdale for

38 years with his wife Sylvia
and seven children.

John has worked for 24 years

In managerial, sales and

marketing positions and for
eleven years has been the

owner of "Buckaneers for

Seafood" and has also owned

and farmed a small acre beef

operation, with a particular

Interest In breeding Murray

Grey cattle for over 20 years.

John has a strong interest
in the development of the

community's youth.

Cr 'yaughan Pendlebury

joined Waratah-Wynyard

Council following the 2007

election and served on

Council until October 2011.

Cr Pendlebury is a part-

owner/operator of the Wharf
Hotel at Wynyard, an active

member of the Wynyard

Rotary Club and was a
member of the Bloomin'

Tulips Festival Committee.

A strong believer in the

importance of the tourism

industry, not just to Wynyard
but to the whole of the

State, Cr Pendlebury is
committed to growing his
business, which currently
provides employment for
25 local people.

Cr Pendlebury is a strong
family man, who believes
Wynyard provides a wonderful
environment for his two

primary school-aged sons.

Cr Francis Ransley 0AM was

first elected to Waratah-

Wynyard Council in March

1994, re-elected In October

2002 after a two-year break
and served on Council until

October 2011.

Prior to this he held the

position of Warden on the
Burnie Port Authority for
seven years. A retired

Electronics Engineer, Cr.

Ransley Is a Past President of

the Wynyard Rotary Club, the
Veteran Car Club of Australia

and the Australian Powerboat

Association.

His present interests include

the restoration of veteran

cars and his collection of

these vehicles is one of the

finest in Australia. In June

1999 Cr Ransley was awarded
the Medal of the Order of

Australia for service to the

preservation of vintage

and veteran cars, to Local

Government, to power boat

racing as a competitor and

administrator and to the

community.

In a community interest
gesture, Cr. Ransley and
his wife Elayne formally

committed this valuable

vehicle collection to the

Waratah-Wynyard Council

free of cost for a 20 year

term, to form the basis of

the "Wonders of Wynyard"

Exhibition Centre display.
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Ordinary Meetings
2011/2012

Special Meetings
2011/2012

Group Discussions
2011/2012

Mayor Robert Walsh 12 2 20

Deputy Mayor Alwyn Friedersdorff 11 1 19

Cr Gary Bramich 11 1 22

Cr Kevin Deakin (elected Oct 2011) 8 2 8

Cr Colleen Dibley 12 2 21

Cr Mary Duniam 10 2 22

Cr Darren Fairbrother 12 2 22

Cr Clayton Hawkins 12 1 16

Cr David Moore (elected Oct 2011) 8 2 12

Cr Vaughan Pendlebury (until Oct 2011) 4 0 4

Cr Francis Ransley (until Oct 2011) 4 0 9

Cr John Smith 12 2 23

MAYOR, DEPUTY MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS' ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES

In accordance with section 72(1)(cb) of the Local Government Act 1993, the total allowances and expenses paid to the Mayor,
Deputy Mayor and Councillors were:

Mayor Deputy Mayor Councillors Total

Allowances & Expenses $ 49,481 $ 25,570 $112,249 $187,660



GENERAL MANAGER'S MESSAGE

Council's goal for the future is to continue to be a thriving
and prosperous municipality, with opportunities for aii.
Over the past twelve months, Council has continued its

pursuit of this vision.

The business of local government continues to become
more complex. Nothing is constant, nothing is predictable;
everything is forever evolving and changing. Our dealings
with all aspects of our community and stakeholders is more

complicated as the worid becomes a smaller place through
technologies. We are judged by ever increasing reguiations
and higher standards expected by both the iocal community
and others.

Sometimes though it seems life can be more complicated
than it needs to be. Occasionally, it is unclear to me
how these demands will realise a material benefit to the

community as compared to the levei of resource
commitment required. We operate in an environment where
we have to respond to higher levels of technical capacity and

demand, which taxes our limited resources.

In last year's report, I observed we were increasing our

efforts to embed safer working practices. An incident
involving overhead power lines eariier in the year has now
led to inconsistencies between what we are required to do

by the responsible operator of the lines and their ability to

respond in a timely manner. We are now working though this
dilemma, so that the current situation of potential delays
(and costs) in deiivering our own works programs does
not continue. A case of the regulatory framework not
matching operational demands.

The safety of our staff, contractors and the public rightfully
will continue to be of paramount importance.

Last year I also observed that a Communication Strategy
had been prepared and a resource shared role created

to implement the same. Our efforts to communicate our

activities today is much different to 12 months ago.
The progress of the redevelopment of the Wynyard Wharf
was regularly reported in a dedicated newsletter and via
social media - the result being reflected in the very few

phone and in person enquiries on the matter. A case of

getting the information out to key audiences at a reduced
overali cost.

We now even have the Mayor appearing on YouTube™ to
convey his weekly message.

There are many actions and outcomes documented in this
Annual Report. It provides a solid reference to the broad
range of community, environmental, financial, infrastructure,
social and cultural activities in which Council has been

involved. The impending official opening of the Wynyard
Wharf represents not just the culmination of that project, but
hopefuliy the beginning of an invigoration of the precinct.

I believe we need to continue to aim for the best outcomes

always, to find and embrace those things that can make a real
difference in our day to day lives. In all that we do, we need to
remain passionate, display inspiration and enjoy continuing to
build relationships.

In closing, I wish to acknowledge the efforts of Councillors
and Council staff over the past year. Two senior management
roles have been vacant for a significant length of time,
placing additional workloads on many. In particular, I wish
to sincerely thank the members of the Senior Management

Team for their dedication and commitment over what has

been a challenging year.

Greg Winton
GENERAL MANAGER
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FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE

STATISTICS 2011/2012

1

- ̂

Financial Indicator Comparisons 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10

Current Ratio Current Assets

Current Liabilities

3.78:1 3.38:1 3.00:1

Quick Asset Ratio Cash + Liquid Debtors

Current Liabilities

3.47:1 3.05:1 2.69:1

Rate Coverage Ratio Rate Revenue

Operating Revenue
55.46% 54.76% 56.95%

Outstanding Rate Debtors Rate Debtors

Rate Revenues

2.60% 1.80% 1.10%

Expenditure per Capita Operating Expenditure
Population

$1098.28 $997.87 $1,006.17

Operational Grant Coverage Ratio Grant Revenue

Operating Revenue
25.66% 22.32% 22.17%

The following table 'Finance at a Glance' provides comparisons of this year's results with the previous years:

Finance at a Glance

2011/2012

$

2010/2011

$

Increase/

(Decrease)

Operational Income 15,815,053 14,158,529 1,656,524

Operational Expenditure 15,439,671 14,066,039 1,373,632

Net Increase from Ordinary Activities 375,382 92,490 282,892

Rate Revenue 8,771,248 7,753,827 1,017,421

Government Grants 4,057,903 3,160,899 897,004

User Charges 1,838,353 1,875,979 (37,626)

Interest Income 498,876 480,556 18,320

Employee Costs 4,867,896 4,784,287 83,609

Borrowing Costs 7,130 16,629 (9,499)

Remissions and Discounts 526,620 457,193 69,427

Cash on Hand (Incl. Investments) 8,065,831 6,374,724 1,691,107

Receivables (Current) 463,945 539,332 (75,387)

Payables 1,310,561 1,046,356 264,205

Outstanding Loans 64,542 195,210 (130,668)

Provisions 1,470,514 1,578,765 (108,251)

11



CAPITAL WORKS PROJECT SUMMARY

The summary below outlines the performance
status for Council's budgeted capital works
projects for the 2011/2012 financial year.

Budgeted Projects completed

Budgeted Projects still in progress at 30 June 2012

Budgeted Projects deferred

Q Budgeted Projects not proceeded with

PROJECT STATUS PROJECT STATUS

Governance Tourism

Waratah-Wynyard Website Upgrade

Corporate Services

Marquee Acquisition

Office Refurbishment - Design

Office Refurbishment

Information Technology

Purchase of RecFind 6 - Stage 2

24 Port network switch repiacement

PC/Laptop Repiacements

Printer Replacements

Waratah RIG - Computer Upgrade

Children and Youth Services

Puddleduck Playcentre - Carpet

Chiidcare - Shade

Childcare - internai Glass Doors

Purchase of Infocouncil Agenda Software

Cadastre Correction Stage 2 - Somerset

Links Chiid Care Centre - New Kitchen in Kids Room

Littie Goldie St After Schooi Hours Care -

New Gate and Fence

Links Child Care - Playground Drainage

Sandpit cover

o

o

o
Wynyard Foreshore Market - Traffic impact
Assessment

interpretation - Walk of Wonder Project

Motor Home & Campervan Signage

Wonders of Wynyard - New Store Room

Robinson Collection

Emergency Services

Waratah SES Unit - Defibriiiator

Road Vision LED Work Lights

Engineering Services

Depot

Emulsion Storage Tank

Rurai Crib Room

Skillion Shed Roof Replacement - Wynyard Depot

Roller Door Replacements - Waratah Depot

Refurbish 2 Workshop roofs - Waratah Depot

Wynyard Office

Council Chambers Keyless Entry

Access Ladder Air Conditioning Piant Room

12



PROJECT STATUS

Plant

Motor Vehicle Replacement

Mitsubishi FM 657 - 6 Yard Truck

Kubota F3560 - Ride on Mower

Woodchipper - Refurbishment

O
Perkins Hand Held Roller - Replace with Double
Drum Roller

Concrete Saw

Small Plant

Mower Trailer Modifications

Public Conveniences

Waratah - New Toilet Block IL

Roads

Kerb & Channel

Enden Place Somerset

Re-Sheeting

Bauld Hill Rd

Bassetts Rd

Bowketts Rd

Capells Rd

Coal Mine Rd

East Yolla Rd

Keens Rd

Lyons Rd

Margetts Rd

Stewarts Rd

Ten Foot Track

Stutterds Rd

Gonah Rd

Whitsitts Rd

Reseals - Rural

Cumming Street - Boat Harbour

East Yolla Road

Myalla Road

Preolenna Road

Rulla Road

Lapoinya Road

Back Cam Road

Little Village Lane

Reseals - Urban

Esplanade - Somerset

Falmouth Street

Frederick Street

Annie Street

Collins Street

Crosby Street

PROJECT STATUS

English Street

Little Quiggin

Ritchie Street

William Street

Magnet Court

Cue Street

Kerrison Court

Sprent Street

Footpaths

Jackson Street

Gibbon Street

Richard Gutteridge Gardens Carpark

Saunders Street

Goldie & Austin Street Roundabout ■

Wheelchair Ramps

Park & Jackson Street Intersection ■

Wheelchair Ramps O

General

Driveway Upgrades

Woolworths Carpark Toilets

Protection Sealing of Goldie St

Bus Stop Upgrade Jackson Street

Bridges

Frenchs Road

Bridge Replacement Reserve I
Big Creek - Brackendaie Road (Transfer to
Bridge Reserve)

Parks & Gardens

©

Wynyard

Richard Gutteridge Gardens & Waterfront
Masterpian

Richard Gutteridge Gardens - Signage & Lighting

Walking Track Signs

East Wynyard Boat Ramp

Concrete Base/Fencing for Cannons

Port Creek East - Armour Rock Wall

Mt Hicks - Tree Planting

Nurses Retreat - Removal of Radiata Pines

Wynyard Wharf Precinct Redevelopment

Somerset

Cam River - Boat Ramp

Cam River - Secure Rock Wall

Cam River Foreshore Masterpian

Boat Harbour Beach

Development Plan - Implementation

Sisters Beach

Pedestrian Bridge Lighting It

13



CAPITAL WORKS PROJECT SUMMARY continued

PROJECT STATUS PROJECT STATUS

Waratah Public Halls

Mass Piantings of Waratah's - Nature Strips O Old Post Office Waratah - Paint & Repair Interior

Wynyard Band Rooms - Install Fire Hydrant ^
RLCIP Funding - Round 3

Boat Harbour Beach - BBO Shelter

Sisters Beach - BBO Shelter

Wynyard Walkways and Jetties Refurbishment

Wynyard

Wynyard Football Ground - Lights Replacement

Wynyard Football Ground - Install Fire Hydrant

Wynyard Football Ground - Reclad Tom Barnard

Stand

Wynyard Basketball Centre - Sand Floors and
Repaint Lines

Wynyard Basketball Centre -

Changeroom Upgrade

Wynyard BMX Track - Remove Buildings and
Level Site

Replacement of Goal Posts

Somerset

Somerset Indoor - Main Stadium Roof

Yolla

Yoila Recreation Ground - Cricket Pitch Cover

Yolla Recreation Ground - Bottom Step for
Grandstand

I

0

$

Somerset Basketball Centre - Sand Floors and

Repaint Lines

Somerset Soccer Club - Demolition of Old

Changerooms

Langley Park - Kiosk

O

IL

O

Elderly Day Care Centre - Clad Storage Building
with Coiourbond

Wynyard Band Rooms - Replace Old Kitchen

Wynyard Community Centre - Replace Switchboard

Council Buildings - Essential Health and
Safety Audit

Demoiish 2 vacant Units Waratah

Drainage

0

1
o

Replace Stormwater Grated Pits - Wynyard

Replace Stormwater Grated Pits - Somerset

Stormwater Manhoie covers - Wynyard

Clean open drains Sisters Beach - Irbys Property

Clean open drains Mt Hicks Rd - Port Creek

Install 600mm Culverts Tippetts Lane

Banksia Avenue Sisters Beach

Inglis Street/ Wilkinson Streets

Cumming Street - Boat Harbour

Irby Bouievard - Sisters Beach

Irby Circus - Sisters Beach

Biue Water Crescent - Stormwater Outfail Pipe

14



MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
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Senior Staff

During the year the Council's senior management structure
was reviewed to reflect current needs and, in particular, the

implications of resource sharing agreement between Waratah-

Wynyard and Circular Head Councils.

The positions comprising Council's Executive Management Team
and their incumbents at 30 June 2012 are as follows:

Position Name

General Manager Greg Winton

Executive Manager Corporate Governance Paul Smith

Executive Manager Development Services Vacant

Executive Manager Engineering Services Daniel Summers

Executive Manager Financial Services Rachel Mallinson

Executive Manager Organisational and Tracey Bradley

Community Development

In accordance with Sections 72 (1(cd), 72(4) and 72(5) of the

Local Government Act 1993 Council is to include within its Annual

Report a statement relating to the total annual remuneration paid
to Council employees who hold positions designated by it as being
senior positions. Total Annual remuneration includes the salary

paid, contributions to superannuation, value of the use of any

motor vehicle and any other allowances or benefits paid.

The amounts below are based on full time equivalent positions
and do not reflect any part-time arrangements in place.

Annual remuneration No of Employees

$180,000 - $200,000 T*

$160,000 - $180,000

$140,000 - $160,000

$120,000 - $140,000

$80,000 - $100,000

* This position forms part of a resource sharing arrangement with
Circular Head Council with Waratah-Wynyard Council responsible
for funding 0.5 PTE.

15



STAFF STRUCTURE

W

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) BY DEPARTMENT

Department Number of Staff FTE Male Female

Corporate Governance 8 6.9 4 4

Development Services 5 3.9 1 4

Engineering Services 11 6.7 5 6

Works & Services Depot 31 31.0 30 1

Financial Services 8 6.7 2 6

Organisational & Community Development 7 6.9 3 4

Childcare 24 12.5 24

Tourism 9 4.5 9

Total 103 78.9 45 58

AVERAGE AGE BY DEPARTMENT (YRS)

Corporate Governance 48

Development Services 41

Engineering Services 48

Works & Services Depot 45

Financial Services 47

Organisational & Community Development 46

Childcare 38

Tourism 41

Average Age Overall 44

16



STAFF TENURE IN EXCESS OF 10 YEARS

Department Number of Staff FTE Male Female

Corporate Governance

Development Services 2 1.1 2

Engineering Services

Works & Services Depot 3 3.0 3

Financial Services 2 1.8 2

Organisational & Community Services 3 3.0 2  1

Childcare 1 1.0 1

Tourism

Total 11 9.9 5  6

STAFF TENURE IN EXCESS OF 20 YEARS

Department Number of Staff FTE Male Female

Corporate Governance 2 1.6 1  1

Development Services

Engineering Services 1 1.0 1

Works & Services Depot 9 9.0 9

Financial Services

Organisational & Community Services

Childcare

Tourism

Total 12 11.6 11 1

RESOURCE SHARED POSITIONS

Staff Waratah-Wynyard Circular Head Male Female

General Manager 0.5 0.5 1

Executive Manager Engineering Services 0.5 0.5 1

Executive Manager Financial Services 0.5 0.5 1

Manager of Engineering & Projects 0.5 0.5 1

Manager Strategic Projects Office 0.5 0.5 1

Assets Coordinator 0.5 0.5 1

Communications Officer 0.5 0.5 1

Human Resources Coordinator 0.5 0.5 1

Information Technology Officer 0.5 0.5 1

Occupational Health & Safety Officer 0.5 0.5 1

Risk Management Coordinator 0.5 0.5 1

Strategic Facilities Designer 0.5 0.5 1

Technical Officer Engineering & Projects 0.5 0.5 1

Technical Officer Assets 0.5 0.5 1

Total 7.0 7.0 11 3

STAFFING-TURNOVER 01/07/10-30/06/11 01/07/11-30/06/12

No. % No. %

No of FTE Resignations 10.36 13.4 7.63 9.7

17



RESOURCE SHARING

The Waratah-Wynyard Council and the
Circular Head Council agreed to extend the
Resource Sharing Agreement for an additional
three year period from December 2010.

The initiative was born from a desire to make each Council

stronger and better. With a national skills shortage, ever

expanding demands and continual pressure to limit rate

increases, it was considered that such an initiative could give
each Council an edge in dealing with these issues.

One of the strengths of smaller Councils is the versatility

and flexibility of staff and genuine desire to use resources
for the best outcome. Although in local government sharing

ideas has long been part of the strength of the sector, it

has also often been ad hoc and generally only with known

colleagues and always couched with the need to protect

corporate knowledge. The Resource Sharing Agreement has
provided an opportunity to access a greater knowledge base,
create an open door environment for staff to talk, share and

work collaboratively. What this has done is build our people,

providing an opportunity for staff to be part of a larger field

of expertise.

Smaller Councils are notorious for creating positions which
cover a range of responsibilities; the size of the workforce

doesn't change the diversity of the requirements and

responsibilities in local government. Resource sharing has

enabled specialisation of some roles, creating a dedicated
position to cover a function rather than filling up a position

with a bit of this and that. This is facilitating the development

of staff to strengthen and build the overall skills base.

Another consequence of working collaboratively has been

the development of shared systems; this has come from a

broader review of what we do, greater input into making

things better and support with implementation. Resource
sharing has reduced thinking in isolation about solutions and

inspired innovation and the aspiration to do better.

Resource sharing in itself is not an outcome, but a

continuing process. The approach taken has been to re-focus

financial resources to maintain service levels to acceptable

standards, acknowledging statutory responsibilities and
to plan for the future, enabling progress to be made in

addressing business risks.

A report was considered by the Council in May 2010

identifying the progress of efforts associated with this

approach. The Council has agreed to extend the arrangement

until 30 November 2013.

As at June 2012, the following roles were subject to a
shared arrangement:

General Manager
Executive Manager Engineering Services

Executive Manager Financial Services
Manager of Engineering & Projects (vacant)
Manager Strategic Projects Office

Assets Coordinator

Communications Officer

Human Resources Coordinator

Information Technology Officer
Occupational Health & Safety Officer
Risk Management Coordinator

Strategic Facilities Designer
Technical Officer Engineering
Technical Officer Assets

For the 2012/2013 year, the following role is also envisaged to
be subject to a shared arrangement:

Weeds Officer

An independent review of the impacts of Resource Sharing on
Staff and Councillors was commissioned in 2011. The review

was presented to Council in May 2012.

Actions proposed for the term of the Agreement,
dependent on the availability of resources are included in the
opposite table:
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Operational Area Operational Action

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area: Economic Implementation Time Frame

Strategic Planning Undertake review of Strategic Plans to Identify opportunities to combine efforts for
advocacy and action on strategic alms.

2010/2011

Project Delivery Engineering department to deliver Infrastructure projects across both municipalities. 2010/2011

Tourism Examine opportunities for enhanced synergies to service visitor needs. 2011/2012

Planning Approvals Participate jointly In the Regional Planning Process. 2010/2011

Building/plumbing permits Establish a working party to exploit synergies In the Issuing of permits. 2011/2012

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area: Environment

Environmental Management Pursue shared arrangements for Weed Management. 2010/2011

Present arrangements and recommendations for Improved NRM related activities,
particularly in relation grant funding.

2010/2011

Review and implement an Environmental Management Plan for both Councils public assets. 2012/2013

Animal Control Form a joint working party to explore the "best" value method for the provision of animal
control services to both municipalities.

2012/2013

Asset Management &
Development

Develop and Implement asset management plans for all major capital classes for
both municipalities.

2010/2011

Stiaring of specialised
equipment & software

Identify opportunities to better utilise available equipment. 2011/2012

Develop program for Improved plant utilisation across both municipalities.
(Program to be presented to Councils for approval).

2011/2012

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area: Community

Communication &

Consultation
Undertake Communications Audit, Implement Communication Strategy. 2011/2012

Introduce and refine Interplan reporting program to Inform progress of Council activities. 2010/2011

Form a working party to refine web page relevance and further develop social media
communication opportunities.

2010/2011

Public Health Reconsider opportunities for specialised role(s). 2011/2012

Regulatory Compliance Reconsider opportunities for specialised role. 2011/2012

Youth Services Examine additional joint or regional approaches to support youth service activities. 2011/2012

Professional development Present professional development opportunities based upon Identification of Councillor needs. 2010/2011

Introduce "Employer of Choice" provisions. 2011/2012

Undertake Staff "Training Needs Analysis" against position descriptions for both Councils. 2011/2012

Undertake career path review for all staff. 2011/2012

Occupational Health & Safety Implement Contractor Induction System. 2010/2011

Implement Employee Induction system. 2010/2011

Implement skills and license matrix for mandatory training. 2010/2011

Legal Services Tender for a joint panel of suppliers of Legal advice and Counsel. 2011/2012

IT Services Form a joint IT services review committee to consider a strategic action plan for
IT common platform and Standard Operating Environment's (SOE). 2012/2013

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area: Governance

Policy Development Establish a combined document quality management system. 2011/2012

Establish an Internal audit committee to make recommendations for harmonlsatlon

policies between Councils where appropriate.
2010/2011

Risk Management Revise Risk Management Committee roles. 2010/2011

Employ resource shared officer for Risk Management. 2010/2011

Embed Risk Management principles for all projects and capital works. 2011/2012

Payroll Implement Interchangeable payroll staff to provide leave cover and support between Councils. 2012/2013

Procurement Initiate procurement solutions to both Councils which demonstrate effective and
efficient gains.

2010/2011

Long Term Financial Planning Prepare and Implement 4 year forward estimates and 10 year Indicative long term
financial plans.

2010/2011
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STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

The Local Government Act 1993 provides
that specific items are to be recorded with
the Councii's Annual Report.

LEGISLATIVE AND POLICY ERAMEWORK

"Section 77-Grants and benefits - The details of any grant made or benefit
provided are to be included in the annual report of the council."

The following organisations were supported by Council with Community
Assistance Grants.

Organisation S Paid Organisation S Paid

1st Wynyard Scout Group 1,368 Somerset Scout Group 250

Australian Breastfeeding Association 300 Tasmanian Academy - Hellyer Campus 500

BighART Inc 500 Women of the World 80

Boat Harbour Beach Surf Lifesaving Club 2,000 Wynyard AFL Auskick Centre Inc 500

Cam Retirees 1,000 Wynyard Chorale 656

Cam / Somerset Neighbourhood Watch 300 Wynyard Junior Soccer Club 360

Central Wynyard Neighbourhood Watch 200 Wynyard Squash Racquets Association 650

Cobbing, Zack 200 Wynyard Yacht Club Inc 747

Inglis Pony Club 500 Wynyard Camera Club 420

Lions Club of Wynyard 1,000 Wynyard Garden Club Inc. 700

Lucas, Anthony 200 Wynyard High School 1,987

Meals on Wheels 467 Wynyard Rainbow Guides 300

Myrtle Park Retirement Homes Inc 950 Wynyard Historical Society 500

Pearce, Roger 200 Wynyard Ladies Probus 100

Probert, Emily 200 Wynyard Municipal Band Inc. 3,000

Riding for the Disabled 500 Wynyard Softball Club 500

Rotary Club of Somerset 1,000 Wynyard Football Club 2,000

Rotary Club of Wynyard 1,814 Wynyard Bowls Club 2,000

Samurai Ju-Jitsu Fed Tas 800 Yolla District High School 2,000

Somerset Christmas Pageant Committee 500 TOTAL OF GRANTS $32,749

Somerset Puddleduck Playcentre Inc 1,500
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LAND DONATED BY COUNCIL UNDER SECTION 177

Council did not during the year donate any land under the
provisions of Section 177 of the Local Government Act 1993.

CONTRACTS OVER $100,000

Description of Contract Period of Contract
Contract Value

(ex GST) Contractor Address of Contractor

Sprayed Bituminous
Surfacing (681)

25/08/2011 - 02/04/2012 $558,145 Hardings Hotmix Limited 30 Industrial Drive
Uiverstone 7315

Design & Construction
of Wynyard Wharf (671)

21/10/2011 - 23/03/2012 $1,726,905 VEC Civil Engineering
Pty Ltd

108 Industrial Drive,
Uiverstone 7315

Replacement of Frenchs
Road Bridge over
Seabrook Creek (682)

25/01/2012 - 01/05/2012 $155,633 TasPlan Civil
Construction

10 Faulkner Drive,
Latrobe 7307
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REGIONAL ACTIVITIES

f

^ Cradle Coast Authority

T
Since 2000, the Cradle Coast Authority has been providing
ways for the councils and communities of North West
Tasmania to work together for the benefit of our region.

It provides a strong voice for the region in dealings with other
levels of government, shared administration for regional
activities and development of new services and initiatives to

meet the region's changing needs.

In 2011/12, the Authority advocated the region's interests in
public debate and policy processes on issues ranging from
development in the Tarkine to air and sea access, health

services reform and regional economic development.

The Authority's business units continued to be leaders in
their fields, with Cradle Coast NRM winning the Australian
Government NRM Award at the 2011 Tasmanian Landcare

Conference and the Cradle Coast Tourism team establishing
the State's first industry-based leadership group under the
new Regional Tourism Organisation structure.

In its second year of operation, the Cradle Coast Healthy

Communities Initiative launched a 'toolkit' for councils to

support healthy lifestyles in their communities, and

provided funding for 32 'local solutions' to prevent

lifestyle-related disease.

The Tarkine Forest Drive project reached an important

milestone with the construction of the Tayatea Bridge at
Meunna, a regional template for planning schemes was

finalised and $20,000 was secured for strategies to improve
the wellbeing of lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender and
intersex people in our region.

These highlights reveal the diversity of issues the Authority
is involved with, but also the region's growing confidence in
working at regional scale.

The Authority's member councils expressed their confidence
in the Authority by increasing the notice period for
withdrawal of membership to 3 years, and supporting the
borrowing of funds to establish new office premises under a

10 year lease.

The year ahead will see the Authority move into new
headquarters, present nine new planning schemes for

formal approval, investigate new regional models for
waste management, planning, tourism and emergency

management services, and help the region prepare for, and
respond to, new political and economic challenges.

This will be possible with, and because of, the continuing
efforts of our staff, our board, our councils and their

communities, and their commitment to our region.

Copies of the Cradie Coast Authority Annual Report 2011/12
are available from www.cradlecoast.com.

Roger Jaensch

Executive Chairman, Cradle Coast Authority
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During 2011-12 we focussed on the identification and
impiementation of operational efficiencies across all aspects
of our business.

The introduction of technology to capture performance data
in the field has enabled us to improve operational efficiency

and customer service. The highlight for the year in the area
of water quality was the installation of a new water treatment
plant at Waratah. This innovative "modular style" membrane
filtration water treatment plant includes fiuoridation and
chiorination that complies with industry best practice.
The mains power is supplemented by solar power.

The finaiisation of the Price and Service Plan resulted in a

review and significant updating of our website. This occurred

in parallel with a communication campaign to increase
awareness of pricing changes that commenced on 1 July 2012.

There was an increased emphasis on improving
communication with the media in response to customer

complaints. A proactive and transparent approach was
adopted, delivering better outcomes for all parties involved.
A communication initiative that has been extremely
beneficial is our Facebook page. Very positive customer
relationship outcomes have been experienced due to its
"instant nature" to respond to customer issues. Further

emphasis will be placed on raising the profile of this medium
in the next twelve months.

The majority of our people-based initiatives are centred
on improved communication. With the current employee

intranet going 'live' in August 2011, this significantly improved
accessibility to information for our employees. Employees can
now easily access their payroll information.

Our "No Harm" objective has provided the impetus behind
a number of health and safety initiatives over the past
twelve months. Particular attention has been paid to high

risk activities which have necessitated the development

of procedures and work instructions, provision of training
and ongoing communication activities. Our commitment
to workplace safety was recognised in the 2011 WorkSafe
Tasmania Awards in October and we were a "finalist" and

"highly commended" in the Best New Worker Program.

The development of the Price and Service Plan was a major

project in 2011-12. This plan sets the prices and service

standards for the organisation for the next three years.

The objectives of the plan are:

•  Transition existing customer tariffs to 'target tariffs' that
achieve equity price over the region.

•  improve product and customer service standards.

•  Set price paths which minimise price shocks to customers

A total of 12,300 meters were installed during the year on
un-metered properties and replacement of old meters.
Funding of $1.95 million was received from the
Commonwealth Government for this project.

Cradle Mountain Water is seeking to enhance and
standardise our current Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition System (SCADA) and telemetry systems.

The project will also deliver efficiencies through improved
serviced provision through local and remote monitoring,
alarming and control of all installations.

This year also saw the impiementation and completion of
the Dam Management Plan. The plan contains information
about the effective management of the dams to ensure they
comply with safety requirements. This plan completes the
suite of plans that come under the Asset Management Plan:

• Waste Water Management Plan

•  Drinking Water Quality Management Plan

•  Emergency Management Plan

These management plans provide the basis for continued
improvements in our infrastructure and systems.

The continued focus on communication and consultation

with staff, customers and other stakeholders will be pivotal
in moving forward successfully. The Board, executive and
management team and all Cradle Mountain Water employees
are committed to our organisation and our customers.

Andrew Kneebone

CEO - Cradle Mountain Water
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Advocacy ,

Program Objective:

The CouncH's role is to provide leadership and good local
governance and to act as a strong advocate for the
Waratah-Wynyard community.

Council is required to operate within the legislative
framework estabiished for local government in Tasmania.

Elections are conducted by postal ballot every second year
to elect five Councillors. The Mayor and Deputy Mayor are
elected biennially by popular vote. The next Council election
is due in October 2013.

Activity Summary:

■  Conducted 12 ordinary Council meetings for the year.
The annual general meeting was held on 24 November
2011 at the Somerset Primary School, as part of the
Civic Celebration.

•  Conducted two Special Meetings of Council.

•  Held 23 Group Discussions to assist Councillors in

developing policies and procedures to consider
specific issues.

•  Councillor Development - provided professional
development opportunities both in-house and through
conferences/seminars.

•  Monitored the implementation of 2009-2014 Strategic
Plan and Its associated Action Plans.

•  Adopted, implemented and reviewed policies of Council.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Program Objective:

The General Manager is responsible for the provision of professional advice
and support to Council in its strategic and policy-making roles and to assist
it in representation and advocacy in regional, State and National forums.

The General Manager and support staff are responsible for the overall
management of Council's activities in accordance w/ith the Council's
general policies, strategic direction and specific decisions. This includes
responsibility for direction and management of all personnel, resources and
assets to achieve optimum use of public monies and the most effective use
of business assets and human resources.

The 2011 Customer Service Awards were presented at Council's Civic
Celebration on 24 November 2011.

The sponsors and recipients were as follows:

Sponsor Award Recipient

Corinna Wilderness Experience Customer Service Excellence Award Emma Smart

Bass and Equitable Small Business Award Healthpoint Pharmacy, Wynyard

The Advocate Employer of Choice Award Linx Takeaway and Cafe, Wynyard

Burnie Airport Reward a Volunteer Excellence Award Carol Donaghey

Activity Summary:

•  Managed the operations of Council in a professional manner in
accordance with legislative requirements and Council policies.

•  Oversaw the implementation of Council's adopted Strategic Action Plans.

•  Pursued, where available, economic development and expansion
opportunities that will be beneficial to the community.

•  Supported the continuing professional development of Council's
staffing resources.

•  Showcased service excellence within the Waratah-Wynyard municipal
area at the Civic Celebration.

•  Produced Council and Committee meeting notices, agendas,
minutes and correspondence in a timely manner and compliant with
relevant legislation.

•  Oversaw the formal Resource Sharing agreement with Circular Head
Council and facilitated discussions with other Councils exploring
shared resources.

•  Promoted Council's interest in the State and regional arena on Local
Government reform, water reform and regional development.
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STRATEGIC PROJECTS OFFICE

Program Objective:

The Strategic Projects Office (SPO) identifies opportunities

that may present themselves to Council that further the
strategic intent of Council. Projects are delivered through
project management, innovation, consultation and
strategic thinking.

Depending on Council's budget, the SPO works on projects
to completion and/or to the shovel ready stage. This means
that for larger community projects, all design, consultation,
documentation and the issue of permits is undertaken by the
SPO so that funding can then be sought for the development
of the project. In the modern funding paradigm, governments
will base their funding commitments on projects that

demonstrate need, are underpinned by extensive community
consultation and have all the necessary 'permits' issued.
The SPO is aware of external funding opportunities and
where appropriate, determines if such funding may assist
with project delivery.

The SPO works co-operatively across the various
Departments of Council, is an advocate for regional economic
development and seeks to develop collaborative networks

with community groups, other local professionals and State
and Federal agencies.

Activity Summary:

•  Provided an external focus and internal consultancy that
permits other Council departments to pursue their core

business of providing services to the community.

•  Facilitated and consulted with the community in the
development of the Richard Gutteridge Gardens and
Wynyard Waterfront Landscape Development Plan.

•  Facilitated and consulted with the community in the
development of the Cam River Reserve Landscape
Development Plan.

•  Consulted and communicated with key stakeholders in the
development of the Wynyard Wharf project.

•  Liaised with Members of both State and Federal

parliaments and delivered presentations to local
organisations to create awareness of the role of the
Strategic Projects Office.

The SPO also attracts private clients that seek to

employ the skill base that is comprised within the SPO.
Private commissions to date have included:

•  Landscape Plan and corporate signage for Tasmanian
Dairy Products Pty. Ltd. Smithton;

•  Storm surge protection for the Somerset Wastewater
Treatment Plant, for Cradle Mountain Water;

•  Design of a new depot facility at Paradise Road, Sheffield,
for Cradle Mountain Water;

•  Expansion of the Waste Water Treatment and Pumps and
Distribution buildings at Knights Road, Ulverstone, for
Cradle Mountain Water; and

•  The development of a social media strategy for the
Meander Valley Council.
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Program Objective;

The Corporate Governance group was created during
the year following restructuring of the Business
Performance Unit.

This restructure will provide a stronger focus to legislative
and administrative services for the Mayor, Councillors and
the General Manager that are responsive and efficient In
assisting the Council to undertake Its functions and create a
cooperative link between the Council and the community.

The Corporate Governance program provides professional
advice and support In strategy and policy making, the
development of corporate standards and systems and the
monitoring of corporate performance and compliance.
This Includes the provision of Information and support to
Councillors, the preparation of corporate documents, the
development and maintenance of registers, management
of Council's Information records and the development and
Implementation of the corporate Image and
communications strategy.

Activity Summary:

•  Prepared the 2011 Annual Report and coordinated the
Annual General Meeting of Council as part of an annual

Civic Celebration in November 2011.

•  Coordinated the preparation of the 2012/2013 Annual Plan.

•  Efficiently and effectively resourced Council's formal
meeting and discussion schedule for the year.

•  Undertook a review of Council's policy register.

•  Developed a Council facilities asset register.

•  Implemented Interplan software for the monitoring and
reporting of Strategic Plan objectives.

•  Implemented an upgrade of the electronic document
management system.

•  Appointed a Communications Officer (shared role with
Circular Head Council) and Implemented key components
of the communication strategy, namely:

- Website upgrade.

- Development of Councillor Intranet.

- Project based communications plans.

EMERGENCY SERVICES

Program Objective:

The Emergency Services Act 1976 prescribes Council's
obligations for the provision of emergency service capacity In
the municipal area. Council, In accordance with Its statutory
obligations, maintains an efficient emergency management
capability covering the whole municipal area.

Council has a responsibility under the Emergency Services
Act 1976 to prepare an emergency management plan for the
municipal area and maintain a capability to Implement the
plan when regulred.

It maintains trained and committed volunteer emergency

service units at Wynyard and Waratah under the direction of
a local coordinator based at Wynyard.

The Waratah unit specialises In road accident rescue
operation to provide this capability for the elevated southern
part of the municipal area that can be Inaccessible from the
coast under wintry conditions.

An Emergency Management Plan developed between the
State Emergency Service and Council Is In place and Is
regularly reviewed to ensure that It maintains currency.

Activity Summary:

•  Provided administrative and financial support for volunteer
emergency service units at Wynyard and Waratah.

•  Reviewed and adopted the Waratah-Wynyard Emergency
Management Plan 2011.

•  Investigated opportunities to work collaboratively with
other Councils In the delivery of emergency
management services.

• Wynyard Unit - Driveway sealing.
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BUILDING CONTROL

Program Objective:

As a result of changes within the building industry following
the commencement of the Building Act 2000, private
practitioners now provide all building survey services in the
municipal area and Council acts only as a permit authority
under the legislation.

The Council remains responsible for issuing permits to
conduct building work and has adjusted its permit fees
structure to ensure that this does not create a disincentive to

residents undertaking minor building works.

Activity Summary:

•  Continued to process building permits as expeditiously

as possible - 236 building approvals granted.

•  Ensure that Council's statutory obligations under the
building legislation are maintained.

•  Except where approvals from other Statutory Agencies

were required, all building permits applied for over this
period and accompanied by full documentation were
issued within an average of 5.6 days of lodgement of
the application.

•  236 permits were issued for buildings with a total value
of $20,760,521.

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Program Objective:

Council has a duty under the Environmental Management
and Pollution Control Act 1994 to use its best endeavours to

prevent or control pollution. Investigations are carried out
following public requests relating to pollution issues.

Council's Engineering staff undertake a number of roles
to ensure the Council discharges its overall legislative and
statutory responsibilities.

These specific roles include fieldwork associated with

discharge of the relevant duties.

In practice, as an annual exercise prior to the summer

period. Council officers inspect land in built-up areas to
determine the community's priorities regarding weeds.
Ragwort, Pampas Grass, Willow, Thistle, Gorse and Broom
were given the highest priority for removal, although efforts
have been made with many other species. Council continues
to support the Waratah-Wynyard Weed Management
Strategy as an important and necessary part of its overall
strategic plan.

Activity Summary:

•  Implement legislative control when required.

•  To initiate timely action where necessary to achieve
removal of potential fire hazards on private land.

•  To continue monitoring and facilitating the removal
program of crack willow within local river catchments.

•  To investigate and take action on issues relating

to pollution.

•  Utilise Cradle Coast Natural Resource

Management Strategy.

•  Continually monitor inventory to protect natural resources.
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PUBLIC AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

Program Objective:

Council has a responsibility to provide for the community
an environment free of health threatening risks particularly
relating to air, water and food and to encourage and support
healthy lifestyles.

The Local Government Act 1993, Public Health Act 1997

and the Food Act 2003 outline the primary roles and
responsibilities of Council in relation to public health within
the municipal area.

Council seeks to maintain optimal levels of environmental
and public health by on-going monitoring, inspection,
education and, where necessary by applying relevant
legislation or corrective measures by mutual consent or
enforcement of legislation.

These activities are applied to ensure that food offered
for sale maintains safe standards, private potable water

supplies are safe for human consumption and to encourage
vaccination of children and adults against diseases.

Activity Summary:

•  Determined acceptable and achievable levels of
environmental and public health by ongoing monitoring,
inspection, education and, where necessary, by applying
corrective measures by mutual consent or enforcement

of legislation. A total of 35 places of assembly were
registered along with four public health risk activities,
two regulated systems (eg cooling towers) and 27 private
water supplies were maintained on Council's registers.
Four notifiable diseases investigation were carried out and
appropriate advice given to the affected persons.

•  Ensured safe standards of food offered for sale are

maintained by inspection of food establishments on a risk
management basis and providing advice/education for
food handlers. There were 94 food premises registered
and 46 temporary food licences issued.

•  Sampling of recreational waters for bacterial levels was
carried out over the summer period on a weekly basis.
Sample points are located at the main bathing beaches
of Sisters Beach, Boat Harbour Beach, Wynyard and
Somerset. Resuits indicate compliance with the guidelines
for recreational waters at all locations except Sisters Creek
where bacterial levels at the mouth of Sisters Creek still

require sign posting to advise the public of pollution risk.

•  A school vaccination program was continued in 2011 to
deliver Gardasil vaccine to female students. Also offered

were vaccinations against Hepatitis B, Chickenpox
and Tetanus - 272 students took advantage of this
three stage program.
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TOWN PLANNING

Program Objective:

The Local Government Act 1993 and the Land Use Planning
and Approvals Act 1993 outline the main roles of Council
in relation to its Town Planning responsibilities whilst the
Waratah-Wynyard Planning Scheme 2000, certified by
the Resource Planning and Development Commission on
22 July 2002, provides the direction for the Council and the
community for development within the municipal area.

The town planning function is responsible for identifying and
planning for the community's needs and the sustainable use
of the area's resources by providing a framework, which will
permit development in accordance with the principles of the
State's Resource Management and Planning System.

Council is responsible for discharging a wide range of planning
related regulatory functions including strategic land use
planning, development control and legislative enforcement.

Specifically, Council receives and determines applications for
development or land use in accordance with a performance-
based planning scheme and the Land Use and Planning
Approvals Act 1993.

It also undertakes an educative role: informing the
community about legislation and the State Policies that
define and protect principles of 'sustainable development'.

Activity Summary:

•  Continued to process planning applications and requests
for information in an efficient and timely manner.

•  Maintained a review of actual development approval
timeframes to identify process change that potentially
could reduce future approval timeframes.

•  Continued to ensure decision-making is consistent with
State Policies.

•  Continued the ongoing review and updating of the
Planning Scheme - in accordance with the Regional
Planning Initiative.

•  241 development applications were submitted to Council
with 230 being approved under delegation and nine
being approved by Council. No applications were refused
and the applicants withdrew a total of five applications.
Also at 30th June 2011 there were 11 applications pending
a decision.

•  30 subdivision applications were submitted with 24 being
approved under delegation and two being refused by
Council. A further application was withdrawn and five
applications were pending at the 30th June 2011.

•  Two planning appeals were lodged against Council's
determinations, one of which was withdrawn by the
appealant and the other achieved a mediated outcome.
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ANIMAL CONTROL

Program Objective:

The Engineering Department undertakes a number of
roles to ensure the Council discharges its overall legislative
and statutory responsibilities. These specific roles include
fieldwork associated with promoting responsible dog
ownership in a manner that fully recognises and respects the
rights of dog owners and others in the community.

Council's Dog Management Policy guides its animal control
role. Stray dogs are impounded and cared for at the Burnie
Dog's Home.

Activity Summary:

•  Implement Council's Dog Management Policy to promote
responsible dog ownership.

•  Promote dog registrations in accordance with the Dog
Control Act 2000.

•  Implement legislative control when required.

•  Prompt investigation of dog nuisance complaints and
reports of animals at large.

CEMETERIES

Program Objective:

Council is responsible to cost effectively maintain
cemeteries under Council's control to a standard acceptable
to the community. It is required to abide by the provisions
of the Burial and Cremation Act 2002 in relation to the
operation of its cemeteries.

Council's Works and Services staff maintains cemeteries
in Wynyard, Somerset, Yolla, Waratah, Mount Hicks
and Fiowerdaie.

Records of cemetery operations are maintained in the
municipal office.

Activity Summary:

•  Maintain cemeteries to an acceptable standard for
the public.

•  Accurate maintenance of cemetery registers.

CONTRACT WORKS

Program Objective:

When requested, Council may, utilising Its own plant and
equipment, undertake certain categories of construction or
maintenance work on a commercial basis.

Activity Summary:

•  Undertake any contract works cost effectively and in the
best interest of the overall community.
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ENGINEERING SUPPORT SERVICES

Program Objective:

Council provides engineering services to facilitate efficient
and cost effective completion of its asset management
and capital works programs and to maintain its built
assets to an appropriate standard that complies with
legislative requirements.

Engineering support services applies to the range of
civil engineering design, plant management and other
supervisory and administrative services required for the
majority of outdoor fieldwork Council undertakes.

These include depot, store and plant workshop operations,
supervision of technical projects including those provided
under labour market programs and the operation of
Council's quarries used for road construction and
maintenance purposes.

Council conducts an inspection and maintenance program
to ensure that the built assets it controls are kept in a sound

condition and presentable appearance and present minimised
risk to users and the public.

Activity Summary:

•  Coordinate implementation of operational and capital
works programs.

•  Continue the development of complete Integrated Asset
Management Plan.

•  Continue the development and implementation of
operational policies including service level targets for
Council's infrastructure assets.

Cadastre Correction Stage 2 - Somerset.

Wynyard Works Depot - Emulsion storage tank.

Wynyard Works Depot - Skillion shed roof replacement.

Waratah Works Depot - Two roller door replacements.

Waratah Works Depot - Refurbish two workshop roofs.

Mitsubishi FM 657 - 6 yard truck.

Kubota F3560 - ride-on lawn mower.

Woodchipper - Refurbishment.

Perkins handheld Roller - Replace with double drum roller.

Concrete Saw.

Mower Trailer Modifications.

Motor Vehicle Fleet -Unit replacement.

Small Plant - Unit replacement.
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HOUSEHOLD GARBAGE SERVICES

Program Objective:

The Council provides a service to minimise and
dispose of household waste in a manner which is
environmentally responsible and cost effective.

It utiiises contractors to operate a weekly collection
of househoid refuse from dweilings in Wynyard,
Somerset, Boat Harbour Beach and Sisters Beach. In

Waratah a fortnightly collection is made. All material
collected is disposed of at the Port Latta Landfill site.

Council utilises contractors to operate a fortnightly
collection of comingled recyciabies from dwellings
in Wynyard, Somerset, Boat Harbour Beach and
Sisters Beach.

Activity Summary:

•  Ensure the efficient collection and disposal of
household garbage.

•  Review waste practices in line with the Waste

Management Strategy.

•  Ensure the efficient collection of recycling by local

service providers.

•  Pursue implementation of strategies included
within the Council's adopted Waste

Management Strategy.

PARKS AND RESERVES

Program Objective:

Council maintains a cost effective network of public parks and
recreation facilities to a standard which meets community
expectations and which complements or contributes positively to the
natural landscape of the area.

The municipal area enjoys an abundance of coastal reserves with
Wynyard and Somerset having very attractive riverbank areas,
which the Council has developed and maintains for community
recreational use.

Activity Summary:

•  Maintain reserves in a safe and presentable condition.

•  To continue monitoring and facilitating the removal program of
crack willow within local river catchments.

•  To initiate timely action where necessary to achieve removal of
potential fire hazards on private land.

•  Ensure playgrounds meet community needs.

•  Ensure public open spaces are maintained to a safe and
high standard.

•  Ensure boat launching facilities are maintained to a high standard.

• Waratah - mass plantings of Waratah - front yards and
nature strips.

•  RLCIP Funding - Round 3: Boat Harbour Beach BBQ shelter.

•  RLCIP Funding - Round 3; Sisters Beach BBO shelter.

•  Sisters Beach - Pedestrian bridge lighting.

•  Concrete base/fencing for cannons (post masterplan).

•  Port Creek East, Wynyard - Armour Rock Wall.

•  Nurses Retreat, Wynyard - Removal of 6 large radiata pines.

•  Cam River, Somerset - Removal of displaced rock, make safe.

•  East Wynyard boat ramp.

•  Ensure the effective collection and disposal of litter from
public reserves.

•  Efficient contract administration covering the collection of litter

from public reserves.
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PUBLIC CONVENIENCES

Program Objective:

Council is responsible for the management of public
conveniences throughout the municipal area. These facilities
are provided in all centres and are serviced daily. In summer
months, most foreshore facilities are serviced twice daily by
Council's contractors and facilities in recreation grounds are
cleaned weekly or more frequently where ground
usage requires.

Activity Summary:

•  Ensure public toilet facilities are maintained to a
high standard.

•  Efficient contract administration with regard to cleaning of
public conveniences.

•  Protection of Goldie Street CBD footpath (coloured
concrete and pavers).

•  Saunders Street Public Toilets - Line remaining two
cubicles with stainless steel.

PUBLIC HALLS

Program Objective:

Council provides places of assembly for public and private
use to meet the reasonable needs of the community.
It maintains a public hall at Moorleah to complement other
halls owned or leased by community committees that serve
the public assembly needs of the rural communities in the
municipal area.

In Wynyard, the Wynyard Community Centre and the restored
former Railway Institute Hall are maintained for public use.
A Council appointed committee jointly controls both of these
buildings, which provide meeting room facilities for local
groups and public hire.

Council also provides halls in Wynyard for use as clubrooms
and for practice by the Wynyard Municipal Band, Wynyard
Gymnastic Club and facilities for Guides.

Council has lease agreements with incorporated community
groups to manage and operate the Elma Pagan Community
Centre at Waratah, Preolenna Hall and the Myalla
Recreation Ground.

Activity Summary:

•  Maintain the facilities provided for public purposes at an
appropriate standard.

• Waratah Post Office (old building) - Paint and repairs
to interior.

• Wynyard Band Rooms - Install fire hydrant in
Johnson Piace.

•  Elderly Day Care Centre - Storage building clad
with colourbond.

• Wynyard Band Rooms - Replace old kitchen.

• Wynyard Community Centre - Repiace switchboard.

• Waratah - Demolish two vacant units.

•  Audited 28 Council buildings for essential health
and safety.
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SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

Program Objective;

One of Council's roles Is to facilitate the community's
recyclable and refuse disposal in a manner which is
environmentally responsible and cost effective.

The management of recyclable and refuse disposal involves
the operation of transfer stations at Wynyard and Waratah.

The Wynyard Waste Transfer Station is operated on a
contract basis and waste is transported to the Port Latta

landfill site for disposal. The waste from the Waratah
operation is disposed of at an approved refuse disposal site.

Street and reserves litter is collected on a contract basis and

transported to an approved landfill disposal site.

Activity Summary:

•  Efficient contract administration covering the collection of
litter and the operation of the Wynyard Waste
Transfer Station.

•  Pursue implementation of strategies included within the
Council's adopted Waste Management Strategy.

•  Implement recommendations of regional Waste
Management Strategy.

SPORTING FACILITIES

Program Objective:

One of Council's roles is to provide recreational facilities
which are appropriate to the needs of the community.

To achieve this it maintains recreation grounds in all towns to
accommodate organised sport on a year-round basis.

Indoor recreation centres, managed by local committees,
have also been provided in Wynyard, Somerset and Waratah.

Activity Summary:

•  Maintain sporting facilities in a safe and presentable
condition in conformity with Council policy.

• Wynyard Football Ground - Install fire hydrant.

• Wynyard Football Ground - Reclad Tom Barnard Stand.

• Wynyard Basketball Centre - Sand floors back and remark.

• Wynyard Basketball Centre - Change room upgrade.

•  Somerset Indoor Recreation Centre - Rescrew main

stadium roof.

•  Somerset Basketball Centre - Sand floors back and

repaint lines.

•  Somerset Soccer Club - Demolition of old change rooms.

•  Yolla Recreation Ground - Supply and install cricket
pitch cover.

•  Yolla Recreation Ground - Install bottom step on

grandstand.

•  Langley Park Kiosk.

•  Replacement of goal posts at three recreation grounds.
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STORMWATER DRAINAGE

Program Objective:

Council maintains a piped drainage system within the Wynyard
Drainage District that services 2,059 connections and conveys
collected stormwater to riparian or ocean outfalls.

Council also maintains a piped drainage system within the
Somerset Drainage District that services 1,366 connections
and conveys collected stormwater to riparian or ocean
outfalls.

Activity Summary:

Maintain reticulation system within budget.

Satisfactory completion of maintenance works within
programmed timeframes and budgetary allocation.

Replace five stormwater grated pits in Wynyard.

Replace 10 stormwater manhole lids in Wynyard.

Clear open drains Sisters Beach - Irbys property.

Install 600mm culverts at two locations at Tippetts Lane.

Banksia Avenue Sisters Beach - 300 and 375mm
line flooding.

Inglis/Wilkinson Streets - Replace 300mm main plus kerb
and channel.

Cumming Street, Boat Harbour.

Irby Boulevard, Sisters Beach.

Irby Circus, Sisters Beach.

Blue Water Crescent - Outfall pipe rubber check valve.

TRANSPORT SERVICES

Program Objective:

Council maintains a large network of roads and bridges with
the objective of doing so cost effectively whilst providing
them in a safe and presentable condition for users. The Local
Government (Highways) Act 1982 provides the legislative
requirements for the management of Council's road assets.

The municipal network comprises 262 kilometres of unsealed
and 261 kilometres of sealed roads and streets.

Activity Summary:

•  Maintain Council's road network in a safe and
presentable condition.

•  Ensure road infrastructure is maintained to a safe and
traffic-appropriate standard.

•  Re-sheeting of the following roads - Bauld Hill, Bassetts,
Bowketts, Capells, Coal Mine, East Yolla, Keens, Lyons,
Margetts, Stewarts, Stutterds, East Yolla (two sections),
Oonah and Whitsitts Roads, Ten Foot Track and
Walkers Lane.

•  Resealing of the following rural roads - Cumming Street,
East Yolla, Myalla, Preolenna, Rulla, Lapoinya (three
sections). Back Cam (six sections) Roads and Little
Village Lane.

•  Reseals of the following urban roads - Esplanade
Somerset, Falmouth, Frederick (two sections), Annie,
Collins, Crosby, English, Little Ouiggin, Ritchie, Oue,
William and Sprent Streets, Magnet and Kerrison Courts.

•  Kerb and Channel - Enden Place, Somerset.

•  Footpaths for the following - Jackson Street (Aurora Pole),
pedestrian crossing - Gibbons Street school crossing,
Gutteridge Gardens carpark east to river walkway,
Saunders Street - Gibbons/lnglis River Bridge, Park and
Jackson Streets intersection wheelchair ramps.

•  Transfer to Bridge Reserve.
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Financial Services

Program Objective;

The Financial Services area provides responsible and
accountable control of Council's financial resources and seeks
to create a cooperative link between the Council and the
community. Council's Financial Services includes the physical
conduct and recording of all transactions involving inflow and
outflow of funds and a range of related financial management
activities, including debt management, budget preparation
and reporting on all sectors of Council's operations.

Financial Services staff conduct a very significant proportion
of Council's interaction with ratepayers and is therefore
critically important as an indicator of the organisation's
customer service performance standard overall.

Activity Summary:

•  Ensured financial reporting is clear, meaningful and timely
and meets the needs of elected members, management
and operational staff of Council.

• Maintained debt collection policies and procedures.

•  Prepared 2010/11 Annual Financial Statement by
15 August 2011.

•  Coordinated the preparation of the 2012/2013 Budget
Estimates, Capital Works Program and setting of rates by
30 June 2012.

Financial Management:

The Statement of Comprehensive Income recorded an
operating Surplus (before extraordinary items) of $375,382
compared to the surplus of $92,490 for last year.

The overall Comprehensive Result (after extraordinary items)
was a $14,572,576 surplus compared to last year's surplus
of $37,195,089.

Major extraordinary items included $12,654,074 increase in
value of assets from revaluations, $1,211,022 of grants towards
capital items and recognition of $329,156 of developer
donated assets.

Cash and cash reserves remained at a positive level with an
increase from $6,374,724 in 2010/11 to $8,065,831 at the
30 June 2012.

Councils' loan liability at the 30 June 2012 was $64,542 a
reduction of $130,667 from last year and all interest bearing
loans will be completed in the 2012/13 year.

37



Mental Wellbeing at Work

Once the body releases stress

hormones, they should decrease back

to a normal level

Acute stress vs. chronic stress

A report in 2000 from Centre for Stress

fv^anagement lists 109 direct negative
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The Organisational and Community Development area
provides professional corporate support services in
the organisation through OH&S, risk management, and
contemporary human resources practices.

Organisational and Community Development also facilitates a
diverse range of community development activities that build
community capacity and contribute to community wellbeing.

Key programs include youth services, recreation, community
events and arts and cultural activities, tourism and children's

services programs.

ORGANISATION DEVELOPMENT - RISK MANAGEMENT,

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH & SAFETY, HUMAN RESOURCES

Program Objective:

Risk Management is the part of Council's administrative
function that extends to Occupational Health and Safety

of Council employees, maintenance of Council's general
insurance protection and the identification and management
of risks to reduce liability and maintain a safe environment.

It also includes management of risks on Council-controlled
public land, thereby making a safer environment for residents
and visitors.

The harmonisation of Occupational Health and Safety
Legislation nationally will impact on the manner by which
Council must conduct its business. To assist the Council

engaged a resource shared Occupational Health and
Safety Officer.

The Human Resources (MR) area provides an organisation-
wide approach to people management through policy
development, workplace relations, attracting, recruiting
and retaining high quality staff, enterprise bargaining and
performance management.

Organisational development also focuses on continual
learning and development opportunities with a strong
and supportive workplace culture which embraces equity
and diversity. HR manages workforce data and information as
well as providing professional HR support for Management.
Human Resources provide services and advice to maximise
the value of Council's investment in a skilled workforce to the

ultimate benefit of the Council and its stakeholders.

Activity Summary:

•  Incorporated Risk Management into Council Functions.

•  Completed Risk Register and monitored compliance.

•  Completed Risk Audits where identified.

•  Developed, implemented and maintained appropriate risk
management strategies.

•  Implemented induction program universally across
the organisation.

•  Implementing Risk and OH&S Audit recommendations.

•  Developed and implemented a suite of Human
Resources processes.
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Focus on Occupational Health and Safety

Resource sharing opportunities between Circular Head and
Waratah-Wynyard Council enabled the appointment of an
Occupational Health and Safety Officer in March 2011. The

focus since the appointment has been to ensure that Council
is doing everything reasonably practicable to prepare for the
introduction of new OH&S laws, which are to be introduced

into Tasmania on the 1st Jan 2013.

Non compliance or breaches of the new laws could result in

severe monetary penalties for Council and also for individuals
that have been deemed responsible for ensuring compliance.

Projects to date have included the development of a safety
management plan draft, which details the procedures and
processes reguired to ensure compliance with the new laws.

Several procedures have been developed and implemented,
with a highlight being an improved process for managing
contractors and the highly valued volunteers. Prior to
performing any work for Council, contractors are required to
provide Council with copies of relevant insurances and a Job
Safety Analysis, which details how the task is to be performed
safely. Contractors and their employees are also required
to do an induction with our OH&S Officer. Many contractors
had not heard of the new OH&S laws and the Inductions

have provided the opportunity to explain their requirements.

Council has also been able to provide assistance to several

contractors by providing them with Job Safety Analysis
forms and instructions on how to use them. Volunteers are

also required to do an induction. The induction/information
session includes explaining how the new OH&S laws affect
them and Council.

Risk Management

Risk Management awareness has continued to grow through
the organisation over the past twelve months. Council's
Risk Management Audit was carried out by Council's Public
Liability Insurers resulting in a very favourable score.
Recommendations from that process ensure continuous
improvement into the future. Council's Risk Management
Policy is designed specifically to apply to both internal and
external stakeholders. Following an assessment by external
consultants a Risk Management Committee was established,
which consists of all members of the Senior Management
Team along with the Risk Management Coordinator: this

committee will review risk assessments and monitor the

progress of risk management across the organisation and the
effectiveness of the controls put in place.

Local Government Management Challenge

In March the Waratah-Wynyard and Circular Head Local
Government Management Challenge Team, the WARHEADS
competed in the state LGMA Management Challenge in
Launceston. The team worked hard over the weeks leading
up to challenge day to ensure they were prepared for what

was to be a very busy day. Team members consisted of, from
Waratah-Wynyard, Michelle Vasi, Brendan Hicks and Murray
Jamieson and from Circular Head, Christine Tuson, Heather

Thompson and James Brewer. Team mentor Tracey Bradley,
was there to observe the Teams on the day and believed
that the 'Warheads' demonstrated excellent team work

and a collaborative, inclusive approach to everything thrown
at them.

The Team was named Tasmanian winner and went on to

compete in the Australasian final in May. Although the
team did not win the Australian final they received valuable
professional development from the experience, did a great job
representing the state and have continued to apply the skills
and knowledge they gained through this opportunity.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - CHILD AND YOUTH SERVICES

Program Objective:

Council aims to efficiently and effectively deliver a range
of children and youth programs that meets community
aspirations and needs and to encourage the creation of
additional programs to meet newly identified needs.

Children's services, such as long day care, before and after
school vacation care, a "learn to swim" campaign and a junior
sports development program are offered across the municipal
area where facilities and demand exist. Currently there is a
long day care centre at Wynyard, an occasional care centre at
Waratah, a community-run play centre in Somerset operated
from Council-owned premises, vacation care in Wynyard and
after school hour's care at Wynyard, Boat Harbour and Yolla.

Activity Summary:

•  Provided access to an accredited learn to swim program.

• Operated efficient and effective Child Care Centres in
Wynyard and Waratah.

•  Provided after school hours and vacation care programs in
Wynyard, Yolla and Boat Harbour.

•  Provided a child restraint (baby capsule) hire service.

•  Pursued continuous improvement of all children's services
programs through the National Quality Framework.

•  Supported, conducted and maintained the Waratah-
Wynyard Youth Team for the purposes of engaging
young people in community consultation and
community activities.

•  Provided support for Youth Week activities.

•  Conducted Tryskills Junior Sports Development Program
in 2012.

•  Strengthened links between education providers
and community.

•  Promoted lifelong learning opportunities.

•  Puddleduck Playcentre - Carpet.

•  Childcare - Shade.

•  Childcare - Internal Glass Doors.

•  Links Child Care Centre - New Kitchen.

•  Little Goldie Street After School Care - new gate and fence
on back ramp.

•  Links Child Care - drainage of playground.

•  Sandpit cover.

Healthy Children

In July Children's Services registered with the "Move Well,
Eat Well" program which is an initiative of the Tasmanian
Department of Health and Human Services to promote
healthy living. The program has six healthy messages:
TAP into water every day. Plant FRUIT and VEGATABLES in
your lunchbox, LIMIT sometimes food. Move PLAY and go.
Turn OFF switch to PLAY and Stride and RIDE.

On the 24th July Children's Services held a parent information
evening to introduce the program, staff also attended the
presentation by Mary Eckhardt from the "Move Well, Eat Well"
program. Over the next two years positive changes will be
made with further policy development, role modelling and
nutrition education with staff and families, to best reflect the

"Move Well, Eat Well" program.

Children's Exhibition

This year Children's Services developed a Creative Arts
project which involved all the programs. The aim of the
project was to coordinate a major event with participation
from all services that would encourage children's artistic
pursuits, showcase the talents of the children and provide
an opportunity for the community to see the children's work
publically displayed.

"Autumn" was the theme for the Arts project, and through
the use of various mediums the children worked on individual

and group pieces. The result was a range of beautiful
creations of art.

Bruce's Caf6 partnered with Children's Services to exhibit the
art work in the caf6 for four weeks during second term, this
enabled the wider community to view the art and enjoy the
creative work of the children. The children also visited the

exhibition to see their work on display.
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Children's Christmas Parade

Each Year St Brigid's Primary School invites Chiidren's

Services to participate in the annuai Advent Pageant.
This is a wonderfui ceiebration of the meaning of Christmas
and an annual event for the community. The children were
able to dress up and participate in the waik from the St

Brigid's Church through the main street of Wynyard and
finish at Richard Gutteridge Gardens. Famiiies voiunteered
their time to support the excursion and participate in this

community event.

Clean Up Australia Day

Since 1992, communities across Australia have demonstrated

their support for caring for the environment through
participating in clean up Australia Day.

On the 1st May this year the Child Care Centre, Little Goldie
Street and the After School Care Programs supported Clean
up Australia Day.

Across Australia an estimated 591,400 volunteers helped

remove a staggering 16,169 tonnes of rubbish, the centre
registered and received posters to display at the centre to
inform the families and the broader community about
the project.

The services also received gloves and bags to assist the staff
and children to collect rubbish. Staff educated the children

on the importance of caring for the environment with lots of
conversations, stories and posters. Families were invited to
participate on the day and be part of keeping the area
rubbish free.

Youth Week

The National Youth Week event for 2012 was titled "SKB &

Create" and held on Sunday the 15th of April. The event was
very well attended with approximately 150 young people and
over 50 adults attending as participants and spectators.

The event was a large scale skate competition involving skate
boarding, scooting and BMX. Live music was provided by local
band "263". The event focussed on community engagement,
social inclusion, youth participation and a ceiebration of youth
culture: the event had a wide demographic of young people
involved. The objective of the event was to raise awareness in
the community of low-socio economic, disengaged and at risk
youth.

Young people helped to organise the event and volunteered
their time on the day. The event was sponsored by local
businesses including major sponsorship by Ellis Cycles which
provided the prize money to make this "the richest" skate
competition in Tasmania. Local artist Thom Willis volunteered

his time on the day to paint a mural for the event and show
young people how to create "urban art".

National Youth Week is seen as an opportunity to celebrate
youth culture and recognise the contribution that young
people make to the community.

Waratah Early Years Program

An early year's program continues to be delivered from the
Waratah School site for children under five. The program
operates one day per week and provides an educational
program for children. Work has commenced in identifying an
alternative site for the program.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - COMMUNITY SERVICES

Program Objective

Council's Community Development role is to efficiently and
effectively deliver a range of programs that meets community
aspirations and needs and to encourage introduction of
additional programs to meet newly identified needs.

Council also has a role to promote community awareness
of, and participation in local social, recreational and cultural
activities and services.

Council's Community Services initiates, develops and
facilitates the implementation of community services and
projects and liaises with local organisations and community
groups to assist them in identifying potential sources of
funding and prepare submissions. Advice is also provided,
when requested, to local groups and individuals on matters
relating to organisational structure and social, recreational
and cultural activities and services.

Council maintains a Community Assistance Grants Scheme
under which financial or in-kind support is allocated through
a biannual application process for local groups/organisations.

Council maintains a clubroom facility in Wynyard that is
occupied and used by the Wynyard Senior Citizens Club.

Activity Summary

•  Maintained contact with local artistic and cultural
organisations and provide advice when requested.

•  Maintained an effective link/liaison with education
providers.

•  Supported local mentoring program.

•  Promoted volunteering.

•  Provided an education scholarship program.

•  Supported the Wynyard Senior Citizens Club.

•  Conducted an audit of memorial structures.

•  Established a Recreation Advisory Committee.

•  Provided a financial and in-kind assistance grants scheme
for local community groups.

•  Identified external funding sources and support
applications for projects nominated by community groups.

•  Promoted healthy living activities.

•  Implementing Sport and Recreation review
recommendations.

•  Implementing Youth Strategy recommendations.

•  Marquee acquisition.

Bill French Memorial Scholarship

Each year Council presents the Bill Erench Memorial
Scholarship to a student from the municipality to assist in
undertaking formal studies.

This year the presentation was made at the UTAS Cradle
Coast Scholarship presentation ceremony in February.
Owen Erench presented the Scholarship to worthy recipient.
Rowan Snare. Rowan is planning to study a Bachelor of
Ag-Science at the Cradle Coast Campus.

Healthy Community Initiatives

The second year of funding for this project from the
Commonwealth through the Department of Health and
Ageing has enabled Council to offer a variety of activities in
Somerset, Waratah and Wynyard. Great support has been
received from the project coordinator and the Cradle Coast
Authority in an administrative capacity. All activities were
well supported and justified the time spent organising and
the cost of delivery.

Walking Wynyard at Easter proved even more popular than
previous years with all three walks fully subscribed.
The Waratah walk grew to just on 50 people - perfect
weather allowed walkers to view the Whyte Hill Lookout,
Philosopher Falls and the old Power Station. Free fitness
classes on the Wynyard and Somerset Foreshore utilising
outdoor exercise equipment were popular.
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Environmental Projects

In partnership with the Sisters Beach Environment Team

remedial work has continued along the foreshore and creek to
remove introduced weeds and plants. Work has also commenced
in partnership with 11 farmers in the Sisters Creek catchment to
exclude stock from waterways and encourage native vegetation.

Commonwealth funds were received for these projects. Support
has also been provided to Wynyard Landcare for the Doctors
Rocks revegetation project and Friends of Frenchs Road Nature

Reserve for their annual open day.

James Harrison, a local veterinarian has been supported in his
study of platypus in the Ingiis catchment and French's Road
Nature Reserve. Research which involves catching, tagging,
releasing and monitoring 100 adult platypus will help establish a
baseline for their health. Tree plantings were organised during
the year with six UTAS Medical Students along the Ingiis river
walking track between Jenner and Gibbons Streets.

Seniors Week

"Fish the Cam" has become an annual event in Somerset

for seniors and draws participants from around the area.

The Wynyard Angling Club and North West Fishcare volunteers
provide support on the day. A BBQ lunch is provided as part of

the activities.

Tidy Towns

For the past five years the south has dominated the Tidy Towns
award with the winning towns of Oatlands, Richmond, Ross,
Bicheno and New Norfolk. These towns have then hosted the

awards ceremony and dinner the subsequent year.
The Tasmanian Tidy Towns competition is organised by the Keep
Australia Beautiful Tasmania (KAB TAS) and this year Wynyard
was announced the winner of the population category 2,001 -
15,000 at the event in Hobart.

However the real surprise came when Wynyard was named as
the overall Winner for 2011. Mayor Robby Walsh and Councillor
Mary Duniam were present and were delighted to accept the
award and silverware.

Recognition confirms that the Wynyard community is a great
place to live and work. Wynyard went on to represent Tasmania
as the Tasmanian National finalist. Although Wynyard did not
become the national winner in 2012 Wynyard will host the KAB
Tasmanian awards in November 2012.

43



M OVERVIEW kmm

Wi%

\

ORGANISATION AND

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT - TOURISM

Program Objective:

Council is strongly committed to investigate, develop and
implement strategies for public promotion of the Waratah-
Wynyard district to maximise economic benefit through
tourism. It recognises that tourism is an important industry
within the Waratah-Wynyard area and looks to develop
and implement strategies to increase local visitor numbers
and enterprise investment, thereby assisting the viability
of established businesses and providing new employment
opportunities.

The 'Wonders of Wynyard' Visitor Information and Exhibition
Centre and the Tarkine Interpretive Centre and Stamper
Mill in Waratah are examples of continuing Council tourism
initiatives. Others strategies include provision of effective
promotion and signage to assist visitors locate relevant
infrastructure and attractions.

Activity Summary:

•  Promoted the Waratah-Wynyard area as a destination
for tourists.

•  Actively participated in Zone Marketing initiatives that
support the Waratah-Wynyard area.

• Wonders of Wynyard Exhibition and Visitor Information
Centre - Provided operational support.

•  Supported the on-going development of the "Colours of
Wynyard" festival.

•  Adopted and commenced implementation of the Tourism
Development Plan.

•  Continued to develop and promote the Wonders of
Wynyard Exhibition Centre as a significant regional
tourism attraction.

•  Maximised benefits from major events within the
municipality.

Recognising our volunteers

Most would agree that the best way to learn about an
area is through a local and with over 40 enthusiastic and
knowledgeable volunteers at the Wonders of Wynyard
Information and Exhibition Centre visitors to our municipality

can be sure of a friendly and warm welcome.

Our volunteers are critical to the operation of the Centre
collectively donating over 5,700 hours a year. Council
recognises the important role volunteers play when donating
their time and energy to make a difference in the community.

Council took the opportunity to thank our volunteers in May
with events in Wynyard and Waratah during the 2012 Tasmanian
Heritage Festival. The Heritage Morning Teas recognised
volunteers' significant contribution, in particular, their work to
preserve our community's heritage.

In welcoming volunteers Councillor Duniam acknowledged our
municipality is rich with heritage from mining to wilderness
and of course our display of veteran cars at the Wonders of
Wynyard. It is the tireless effort of volunteers that allows this
history and heritage to be preserved and celebrated by visitors
and locals alike.

In July volunteers also participated in a Waratah familiarisation.
This enabled volunteers to experience the area's tourism
attractions assisting them to provide visitors with information.

Attractions visited included the Athenaeum Hall, Waratah

Mining Museum, Stamper Mill, Whyte Hills lookout,
accommodation providers and the locai church.

The opening of Philosopher Falls

As part of Council's commitment to support and promote
opportunities for development of the Tarkine tourism
experience Council opened Philosopher Falls to the public.

Council reached an agreement with Forestry Tasmania to take
a peppercorn leasehold of the area allowing for long-term track
maintenance at Philosopher Falls.

The Philosopher Falls track was originally constructed by the
Tarkine National Coalition with funding from the Australian
Government's Tasmanian Forest Tourism Initiative. The walk is

suited to all seasons, but it is particularly spectacular in the wet
and during autumn when fungi is flowering. The walk includes
scenery including the river, creek, myrtle rainforest, waterfall
and cascades.
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The Wonders of Wynyard

As a significant regional tourism attraction the Wonders of

Wynyard Information and Exhibition Centre offers a variety
of experiences. The Ransley Veteran Car Collection, Wonders
of Wynyard Art Gallery and the Wynyard Visitor Information
Centre offer something for both visitors and locals alike.

Ransley Veteran Car Collection

The Wonders of Wynyard Information and Exhibition Centre is
proud to be the home of the Ransley Veteran Car Collection
since 2005. In financial year 2011/12 the permanent exhibition
welcomed just under 4,000 visitors and in February was
fortunate enough to gain access to Tim demons' collection of
veteran bicycles. Mayor Robby Walsh launched the collection
of bicycles that date from 1865 to 1965 and are still on display

at the centre. The collection showcases several innovations

made in cycling history from chain-driven motion to the more
modern bicycles. It's a great addition to what is already an

impressive collection of veteran cars on display at the centre.

Wonders of Wynyard Art Gallery

The ever changing exhibitions on display at the Wonders of
Wynyard Art Gallery are a fabulous way for the community
to get to know their local artists. Council staff provided
over 100 hours this year assisting artists and community

groups to showcase their work in the gallery to ensure

there's something new to discover each month. This year's
exhibits included:

•  National Trust: Tasmania's Rural Cultural Landscapes.

•  Artscape: Passages.

•  Judy Taylor: One Woman's Perspective.

•  Ritchie Dona: Puso and Grasp.

•  Sitch and Bitch: Mad Hatters Tea Party.

•  Peter Applegate: Landscape Photography of the West Coast.

• WOW Crowd: Members exhibition.

•  Chris Wilson: Mycological and Magical - Fungi and Fairies.

•  Table Cape Art Circle: Through the Artist's Eyes.

• Wynyard Camera Club: Points of interest in the North West.

•  The Australian Society of Miniature Art (Tasmania):
Miniature Marvels.

•  Susan Hennessy: Spring Time Garden.

Wynyard Visitor Information Centre
In the 2011/12 financial year the Centre welcomed 39,478
visitors showing marginal growth from last year's total
visitation of 39,253.

To provide context, for the year ending March 2012 visitation
to the state decreased to 837,400 visitors, down 8% from

911,900 for the previous year. Further a decrease of 11.9% in
visitation along the Great Nature Trail for the same period
should also be noted in this context and is reflected in the

income and car exhibition results.
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statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Note

Actual

2012

$

Budget

2012

$

Actual

2011

$

Revenue

Income

Rates 8,771,248 8,643,408 7,753,827

User Charges 1,838,353 1,835,043 1,875,979

Interest 498,876 365,616 480,556

Reimbursements/contributions 621,675 507,231 860,856

Grants 8 4,057,903 3,503,123 3,160,899

Distributions from Water Corporation 26,998 - 26,412

Total Income 15,815,053 14,854,421 14,158,529

Expenses

Employee costs 3 4,867,896 5,264,555 4,784,287

Materials and contracts 5,465,157 5,451,398 5,083,958

Depreciation 4 3,691,537 3,107,584 2,892,296

Loss/CGain) on disposal of assets 5 229,311 187,000 220,028

State levies 413,249 405,394 389,233

Borrowing costs 6 7,130 8,149 16,629

Remissions and Discounts 1(s)i 526,620 496,264 457,193

Other expenses 7 238,771 247,000 222,415

Total Expenses 15,439,671 15,167,344 14,066,039

SurplusADeficit) before: 375,382 (312,923) 92,490

Capital Grants 8 1,211,022 1,170,000 524,942

Donated Assets 329,156 130,000 -

Recognition of Assets Ke) - - 6,024,009

Derecognition of assets 1(e) (39,408) - -

Surplus/(Deficit) from Continuing Operations: 1,876,152 987,077 6,641,441

Other Comprehensive Income

Financial Assets available for sale reserve

- Fair value initial adjustment on available for
sale assets

29 - - 12,018,266

- Fair value adjustment on available for sale assets 29 42,350 - 184,041

Asset Revaluations 13 12,654,074 - 18,351,341

Comprehensive Result 14,572,576 987,077 37,195,089

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction w/ith the accompanying notes
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statement of Financial Position
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Note

Actual

2012

$

Actual

2011

$

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 8,065,831 6,374,724

Receivables 10 463,945 539,332

Inventories 11 135,108 146,343

Land held for resale 1(e) 465,000 465,000

Other 12 167,135 135,401

Total Current Assets 9,297,019 7,660,800

Non Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 13 128,997,092 116,054,211

Intangible assets 14 277,612 294,747

Receivables 15 15,065 21,517

Investment in Water Corporation 29 39,529,369 39,487,019

Total Non Current Assets 168,819,138 155,857,494

TOTAL ASSETS 178,116,157 163,518,294

Current Liabilities

Payables 16 1,310,561 1,046,356

Financial Liabilities 17 42,492 130,667

Provisions 18 1,107,057 1,090,044

Total Current Liabilities 2,460,110 2,267,067

Non Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities 19 22,050 64,542

Provisions 20 363,457 488,721

Total Non Current Liabilities 385,507 553,263

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,845,617 2,820,330

NET ASSETS 175,270,540 160,697,964

Equity

Accumulated Surplus 124,199,022 122,252,876

Reserves 21 51,071,518 38,445,088

TOTAL EOUITY 175,270,540 160,697,964

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Total

2012 2011

$  $

Accumulated Surplus

2012 2011

$  $

Reserves

2012 2011

$  $

Balance at beginning of

the year

160,697,964 123,502,875 122,252,876 103,989,894 38,445,088 19,512,981

Comprehensive Result 14,572,576 37,195,089 1,876,152 18,659,707 12,696,424 18,535,382

Transfer to Reserves - - (139,875) (396,725) 139,875 396,725

Transfer from Reserves - - 209,869 - (209,869) -

Balance at end of

the year

175,270,540 160,697,964 124,199,022 122,252,876 51,071,518 38,445,088

The above Statement of Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2012

Note

2012

$

2011

$

Cash Used

Employee Costs (4,892,827) (4,662,141)

Materials and Contracts (6,219,767) (5,805,196)

State levies (413,249) (389,233)

Interest (7,149) (16,865)

Other expenses (238,771) (222,415)

(11,771,763) (11,095,850)

Cash Received

Rates 8,162,097 7,237,688

User charges 2,298,245 1,941,314

Interest 485,611 470,529

Reimbursement of expenses 621,675 860,856

Government grants 4,057,903 3,150,000

GST recovered from ATO 632,759 578,144

16,258,290 14,238,531

Net Cash provided by (used in) operating activities 22 4,486,527 3,142,681

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash Used

Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment (4,081,546) (3,287,402)

(4,081,546) (3,287,402)

Cash Received

Capital grants 1,211,022 524,942

Distributions from Water Corporation 26,998 26,412

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 178,773 350,583

1,416,793 901,937

Net cash provided by (used in) Investing activities (2,664,753) (2,385,465)

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash Used

Financial liabilities (130,667) (205,669)

Net cash (used in) financing activities (130,667) (205,669)

Net Increase in Cash Held 1,691,107 551,547

Cash at beginning of year 6,374,724 5,823,177

Cash at end of year 9 8,065,831 6,374,724

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

a  The Waratah Wynyard Council was established on 2 April
1993 and is a body corporate with perpetuai succession

and a common seai.

The Councii's Main Office is iocated at 21 Saunders St,

Wynyard.

b  The functions of the Councii include:

• to provide peace, order and good government in
the municipality;

• to promote the social, economic and environmental
viability and sustainability of the municipai area;

• to ensure that resources are used efficiently and

effectively and services are provided in accordance with
the Best Vaiue Principles to best meet the needs of the

local community:

• to improve the overail quality of life of peopie in the
locai community;

• to promote appropriate business and employment
opportunities;

• to ensure that services and facilities provided by the
Council are accessible and equitable;

• to ensure the equitable imposition of rates and
charges; and

• to ensure transparency and accountabiiity in Council
decision making.

Basis of Reporting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report
that consists of the Statements of Comprehensive
income. Financial Position, Changes in Equity, Cash Flows,
and notes accompanying these financial statements.
The general purpose financial report complies with
Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative

pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB), and the Local Government Act 1993

(LGA1993) (as amended). Councii has determined that

it does not have profit generation as a prime objective.
Consequently, where appropriate, Councii has eiected
to apply options and exemptions within accounting

standards that are applicable to not-for-profit entities.
As a result this financial report does not comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Accounting

This financial report has been prepared on the accrual
and going concern bases.

This financial report has been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except where specifically stated.

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are
consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where
appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to

accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been
made of any material changes to comparatives.

All entities controlled by Councii that have material assets
or liabilities, such as Special Committees of Management,
and material subsidiaries or joint ventures, have been
included in this financial report. All transactions between
these entities and Council have been eliminated in full.

Details of entities not included in this financial report
based on their materiality are detailed in note 46.

Judgements and Assumptions

In the application of Australian Accounting Standards,
Councii is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the

results of which form the basis of making the judgements.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is

revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Councii has made no assumptions concerning the
future that may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

reporting period. Judgements made by Council that have
significant effects on the Financial Report are disclosed in
the relevant notes as follows:

Employee entitlements

Assumptions are utilised in the determination of Council's

employee entitlement provisions. These assumptions are
discussed in note 1(k).

Defined benefit superannuation fund obiigations

Actuarial assumptions are utilised in the determination

of Council's defined benefit superannuation fund
obligations. These assumptions are discussed in note 25.

Fair Value of Property Plant & Equipment

Assumptions and judgements are utilised in determining
the fair vaiue of Council's property, plant and equipment
including useful lives and depreciation rates. These
assumptions are discussed in note 1(e) and in note 13.

Investment In wafer corporation

Assumptions utilised in the determination of Council's
valuation of its investment in Cradle Mountain Water are

discussed in note 1(i) and in note 29.
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(b) Pending Accounting Policies

The following Australian Accounting Standards have been
Issued or amended and are applicable to the Council but
are not yet effective.

They have not been adopted In preparation of the
financial statements at reporting date.

Standard / Interpretation Summary

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
beginning or ending on

Impact on Local

Government financial

statements

AASB 9: Financial Instruments These standards are applicable
retrospectively and amend the
classification and measurement of

financial assets. Council has not yet
determined the potential Impact on
the financial statements. Specific
changes Include:

* simplifying the classifications of
financial assets Into those carried at

amortised cost and those carried at

fair value:

* reclasslfying financial assets
where there Is a change In an
entity's business model as they are
Initially classified based on:

a. the objective of the entity's
business model for managing the
financial assets: and

b. the characteristics of the

contractual cash flows.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or
after 1 January 2013.

These changes are

expected to provide
some simplification In

the accounting for and
disclosure of financial

Instruments.

t

AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement This Standard defines fair value, sets

out a framework for measuring fair

value and requires disclosures about
fair value measurements. There Is

no financial Impact.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or

after 1 January 2013.

No financial Impact

AASB 119: Employee Benefits This Standard supersedes AASB 119
Employee Benefits, Introducing a
number of changes to accounting

treatments. This Standard was

Issued In September 2011.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or

after 1 January 2013.

Council has not yet
determined the

application or the

potential Impact of
the Standard.

AASB 128: Investments In

Associates and Joint Ventures

This Standard supersedes AASB

128 Investments In Associates,

Introducing a number of changes to
accounting treatments. This Standard
was issued In August 2011.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods

commencing on or

after 1 January 2013.

Council has not yet
determined the

application or the
potential Impact of
the Standard.

AASB 1053: Application of
Tiers of Australian Accounting
Standards

This Standard establishes a

differential financial reporting
framework consisting of two tiers
of reporting requirements for
preparing general purpose financial
statements. This Standard Is not

expected to impact Council. However,
it may affect disclosures if reduced
disclosure requirements appiy.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or
after 1 July 2013.

These amendments

are not expected to

Impact Council.
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standard / Interpretation Summary

Applicable for annual

reporting periods

beginning or ending on

Impact on Local

Government financial

statements

AASB 2009-11: Amendments

to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9
[AASB 1,3,4, 5,7,101,102,112,

118,121,127,128,131,132,136,139,

1023 & 1038 and int 10&12]

[Modified by AASB 2010-7] Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or

after 1 July 2013.

Council has not yet
determined the

application or the
potential impact of
the Standard.

AASB 2010-7: Amendments

to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1,3,4,

5,7,101,102,112,118,121,127,128,

131,132,136,139,1023 & 1038

and int 2,5,10,12,19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential
amendments to other Australian

Accounting Standards and
interpretations as a result of issuing
AASB 9 in December 2010.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or
after 1 January 2013.

Council has not yet
determined the

application or the
potential impact of
the Standard.

AASB 2011-7: Amendments to

Australian Accounting Standards
arising from the Consolidation
and Joint Arrangements
Standards [AASB 1,2,3,5,7,9,

2009-11,101,107,112,118,121,124,

132,133,136,138,139,1023 5.

1038 and Int 5,9,16 5.17]

This Standard gives effect to
consequential changes arising
from the issuance of AASB 10,

AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate

Financial Statements and AASB

128 Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or
after 1 January 2013.

Council has not yet

determined the

application or the
potential impact of
the Standard.

AASB 2011-8: Amendments

to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 13

[AASB 1,2, 3,4, 5,7, 9,2009-11,

2010-7,101,102,108,110,116,117,

118,119,120,121,128,131,132,133,

134,136,138,139,140,141,1004,
1023 5.1038 and int 2,4,12 ,13,

14,17,19,131,132]

This Standard replaces the existing
definition and fair value guidance
in other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations
as the result of issuing AASB 13
in September 2011. There is no

financial impact.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or

after 1 January 2013.

No financial impact.

AASB 2011-9: Amendments

to Australian Accounting
Standards - Presentation of

Items of Other Comprehensive

Income [AASB 1, 5,7,101,112,120,

121,132,133,134,1039 5.1049]

This Standard requires to
group items presented in other
comprehensive income on the
basis of whether they are

potentially re-classifiable to profit
or ioss subsequently
(reclassification adjustments).

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or
after 1 July 2013.

Council has not yet
determined the

application or the
potential impact of
the Standard.

AASB 2011-10: Amendments

to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB
119 (September 2011) [AASB 1,
8,101,124,134,1049 & 2011-8

and int 14]

The Standard makes amendments

to other Australian Accounting
Standards and interpretations as a
result of issuing AASB 119 Employee
Benefits in September 2011.

Applicable for annual
reporting periods
commencing on or

after 1 January 2013.

Council has not yet
determined the

application or the
potential impact of
the Standard.
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(c) Revenue Recognition Interest

Rates, grants and contributions

Rates, grants, and contributions (including developer
contributions) are recognised as revenues when the
Council obtains control over the assets comprising
these receipts.

Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the

commencement of the rating year as it is an enforceable
debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier,

upon receipt of the rates. A provision for impairment on

rates has not been established as unpaid rates represents

a charge against the rateable property that will be

recovered when the property is next sold.

Revenue is recognised when Council obtains control of
the contribution or the right to receive the contribution,
it is probable that the economic benefits comprising

the contribution will flow to Council and the amount of

the contribution can be measured reliably. Control over

granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt

(or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has

been secured, and are valued at their fair value at the

date of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues
during the financial year were obtained on condition that
they be expended in a particular manner or used over a
particular period and those conditions were undischarged

at balance date, the unused grant or contribution is

disclosed in note 8. The note also discloses the amount

of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was

expended on Council's operations during the current year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is

reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite

service has not been provided at balance date and

conditions include a requirement to refund unused

contributions. Revenue is then recognised as the various

performance obligations under an agreement are fulfilled.
Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants.

Non-monetary contributions

Non-monetary contributions (including developer

contributions) with a value in excess of the recognition

thresholds are recognised as revenue and as non-current

assets. Non-monetary contributions below the thresholds

are recorded as revenue and expenses.

User fees and fines

Fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the

service has been provided, the payment is received,
or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first

occurs. A provision for impairment is recognised when
collection in full is no longer probable.

Sale of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when

control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer.

Rent

Rents are recognised as revenue when payment is due
or the payment is received, whichever first occurs.
Rental payments received in advance are recognised as a
prepayment until they are due.

Interest is recognised progressively as it is earned.

Distributions

Distribution revenue is recognised when Council's right to
receive payment is established.

(d) Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic

benefits related to a decrease in asset or an increase of a

liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include, where applicable,
entitlements to wages and salaries, annual leave, sick

leave, long service leave, superannuation and any other
post-employment benefits.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment, infrastructure and intangibles

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment,

infrastructure and other assets having limited useful
lives are systematically depreciated over their useful

lives to the Council in a manner which reflects

consumption of the service potential embodied in

those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and

residual values are made on a regular basis with major

asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and

methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components

that are subject to regular replacement, these

components are assigned distinct useful lives and residual

values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for

each component.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that

they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.

Artworks and Land are not depreciated.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual

useful life as determined each year.

Major depreciation periods used are listed below and are

consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated:

Buildings

Land Improvements

Plant

Motor Vehicles

10 to ICQ years

4 to 150 years

5 to 10 years

2 years

Office Equipment & Furniture 3 to 5 years

Stormwater/Drainage Systems 50 to 80 years

Roads 10 to 150 years

Bridges & Culverts 20 to 65 years

Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal
costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates

to the replacement of a component of an asset and the

cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is
capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the

replaced asset is expensed.
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Finance costs

Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred, except where they
are capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed
by Council. Where specific borrowings are obtained for
the purpose of specific asset acquisition, the weighted
average interest rate applicable to borrowings at
balance date, excluding borrowings associated with
superannuation, is used to determine the borrowing costs

to be capitalised.

Finance costs include interest on bank overdrafts and

interest on borrowings.

(e) Recognition and Measurement of Property,
Plant & Equipment

Acquisition

The cost method of accounting is used for the initial
recording of all acquisition of assets. Cost is determined
as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus
costs incidental to the acquisition including architectural

fees and engineering design fees and all other costs

incurred in getting the assets ready for use.

Non-monetary assets received in the form of grants and
donations are recognised as assets and revenues at their
fair value at the date of receipt.

Non-Current Assets constructed by Council

The cost of non-current assets constructed by the Council

includes the cost of all materials used in construction,

direct labour on the project and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Such assets are recognised as "Work in Progress" until
they become available for service.

Recognition and De-recognition of Assets

Council is continually checking and updating it's asset

data base and makes adjustments to improve the
accuracy of the data and any changes are shown in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Capitalisation of Expenditure

Expenditure is capitalised where the life of the future
benefit can be accurately estimated and where the
expenditure is above the following limits:

$

Land 0

Buildings 1,000

Land Improvements 1,000

Furniture and Fittings 500

Plant and Equipment 500

Bridges 1,000

Drainage Assets 2,000

Roads 5,000

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all

materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing

costs incurred during construction, and an appropriate

share of directly attributable variable and fixed

overheads.

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All duly recognised non-current assets having a limited
useful life are systematically depreciated over their
useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption

of the service potential in those assets. Land is not a
depreciable asset.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis,
using rates which are reviewed each reporting period
as noted in 1 (d).

Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date. Council reviews the carrying value
of its assets to determine whether there is any indication

that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the
higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value
in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any

excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable
amount is expensed to the comprehensive income
statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued

amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised
directly against the revaluation reserve in respect of the
same class of asset to the extent that the impairment

loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation

surplus for that same class of asset. For non-cash
generating assets of Council such as roads, drains, public
buildings and the like, value in use is represented by the
deprival value of the asset approximated by its written
down replacement cost.

Land Held for Resale

Land held for resale is valued at the lower of the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. It comprises
residential blocks of land in Wynyard and Sisters Beach

that is surplus to council's requirements and is expected

to be sold in the next accounting period.

Intangible Assets

Council recognises intangible assets at cost in accordance
with AASB138 and amortises them systematically
over their useful lives in a manner which reflects the

consumption of the service potential in those assets.

(f) Revaluation

Council has adopted the fair value valuation basis for
all classes of property, plant and equipment, except for
Land Improvement, Furniture and Fittings and Plant
and Equipment, which are reported on the cost basis.
For asset classes at fair value. Council undertakes formal

revaluations with sufficient regularity or applies an
applicable index to ensure the carrying value does not

materially differ from fair value at balance date.

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments

are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve

except to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year
decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised
as an expense in which case the increment is recognised
as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation
decrements are recognised as an expense except where
prior increments are included in the asset revaluation
surplus for that class of asset in which case the decrement
is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining
increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation

increments and decrements within the year are offset.
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Land under roads Annual Leave

Land under roads acquired after 30 June 2008 is

brought to account at cost and subsequently revalued on

a fair value basis. Council has elected not to recognise
land under roads prior to 1 July 2008 as an asset in

accordance with AASB1051 Land under Roads. Council

has accounted for land under roads subsequent to

1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB116 Property, Plant

and Equipment.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash

and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at

call, and other highly liquid investments with original

maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding

bank overdrafts. Cash equivalents are held for the

purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather

than for investment or other purposes.

Cash and short term deposits are carried at face value

of the amounts deposited. The carrying amounts of

cash and short term deposits approximate net fair value.

Interest revenue is accrued at the market or contracted

rates and is receivable on maturity.

(h) Inventories

Inventories represent materials and store items intended

for use by the Council. They are stated at the lower of

cost and current replacement value. Costs have been

assigned to inventory quantities on hand at balance date

on the basis of average cost.

(i) Investments in Water Corporation

Council's investment in Cradle Mountain Water is valued

at its fair value at balance date. Fair value was determined

by using Council's ownership interest against the water

corporation's net asset value at balance date based on

Final Treasurer's Allocation Order in 2011. Council has

an ownership interest of 12.10% in the corporation. Any

unrealised gains and loses on holdings at balance date

are recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive

income to a Financial assets available for sale Reserve

each year, (refer note 29)

Council has classified this asset as an Available-for-

Sale financial asset as defined in AASB 139 Financial

instruments: Recognition and Measurement and has

followed AASB 132 Financial instruments: Presentation

and AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to value

and present the asset in the financial report.

(j) Tender deposits

Amounts received as tender deposits and retention

amounts controlled by Council are recognised as
Trust funds until they are returned or forfeited (refer to
note 30).

(k) Employee Benefits

Wages & Salaries

Liabilities for wages and salaries and rostered days off
are recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at
balance date and include appropriate oncosts such as

workers compensation and payroll costs.

The amount of annual leave which is owing to employees
at balance date is recognised and brought to account as
a current liability at rates of pay expected to be paid as
at the reporting date. On-costs (superannuation, payroil
tax and workers compensation) have been recognised

as part of these provisions. Amounts expected to be
settled beyond twelve months have not been inflated

and discounted to their present value in accordance
with AASB119 Employee Benefits as the impact has been

assessed as immaterial.

Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave entitlements, which are

not expected to be settled within 12 months of balance
date, are accrued as the present value of expected future

payments to be made in respect of services provided by

employees up to balance date. Consideration is given,
when assessing future payments, to expected future wage

and salary levels, experience of employee departures
and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using the appropriate indicative mid-rates on

selected Commonwealth Government Securities. On-costs

(superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation)
have been included in these provisions.

Personal Leave

No amount is shown for non-vested personal leave

as experience indicates that, on average, personal
leave taken for each reporting period is less than the

entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is
expected to recur in future reporting periods.

Sick Leave

No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience

indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each
reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in
that period, and this experience is expected to recur in
future reporting periods. Council does not make payment
for untaken sick ieave.

Classification of employee benefits

An employee benefit liability is classified as a current

liability if the Council does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the period. This includes all annual leave

and unconditional long service leave entitlements.

Superannuation

Superannuation payments made on behalf of employees,
are the statutory contributions required by law plus
amounts that have been agreed to as part of The
Enterprise Bargaining Agreement. Further details of the
payments can be seen in Note 25.

(I) Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities loans are carried in the Statement

of Financial Position at their principal amount. Interest
expense is accrued at the contracted rate and included
in "Creditors".

(m) Allocation between Current and Non-Current

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is
current or non-current, consideration is given to the time
when each asset or liability is expected to be settled.
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The asset or liability is classified as current if it is
expected to be settled within the next twelve months,
being Councii's operational cycle, or if Council does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(n) Taxation

Council is exempt from ail forms of taxation except Fringe
Benefits Tax, Payroll Tax, Land Tax and the Goods and
Services Tax.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred
is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these

circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost

of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the
expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet
are shown inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,

the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows

on a gross basis, except the GST component of investing
and financing activities which are disclosed as operating
cash flows.

(o) Rounding

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report

have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

(p) Significant Business Activities

Under section 84(2)(da) of the Local Government Act

1993, Council is required to report operating, capital and
competitive neutrality costs in respect of each significant
business activity undertaken by it.

Council has determined, based upon materiality,
that Transport Infrastructure, Drainage and Parks

and Recreation Facilities as defined in Note 2(c) are

considered Council's significant business activities.

(q) Provision for Gravel Pit Rehabilitation

Provision has been made for Gravel Pit rehabilitation and

restoration on an incremental basis during the course

of the life of the Pit (Refer to Note 20). Amounts are

allocated to the provision based on the amount of gravel
(in cubic metres) extracted from the council's gravel pits.

(r) Joint Ventures

Council had no interest in joint ventures at the
reporting date.

(s) Receivables

Settlement Terms

Debtors of Council are required to settle their accounts

within specified terms including:

I. Rate Debtors

Either by 2 equal instalments or alternatively by the
20 August which provides a discount of 8%, or payment
in full 6 weeks after the discount date. The discount

provided is shown as an expense of the Council in its
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Should amounts

remain unpaid outside of the adopted payment options.
Council will instigate collection proceedings in
accordance with provisions of the Local Government

Act 1993 (as amended).

II. Sundry Debtors

Within 30 days of issue of the account. Should amounts
remain unpaid beyond 30 days Council instigates
collection proceedings in accordance with provisions of
the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

(t) Payables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in
the future for goods or services received, whether or
not billed by the creditor. Trade accounts payable are
normally settled within 30 days.

(u) Comparative Information

Where necessary comparative figures have been
amended to conform with changes in presentation in the
current year.

(v) Budget

The estimated revenue and expense amounts in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income represent amended

budget figures and are not subject to audit.
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2(b) Total assets shown in Note 2(a) are reconciled with the amounts shown for assets In the statement of financial position

as follows:-

Actual Actual

2012 2011

$  $

Current Assets 9,297,019 7,660,800

Non-Current Assets 168,819,138 155,857,494

178,116,157 163,518,294

2(c) Component Functions/Activities

The activities relating to the Local Government's components reported at 2(a) are as follows:-

Transport

Construction and maintenance of roads, footpaths, bridges and traffic signs. It also covers gravel pits and
municipal car parks.

Development Services

Administration of various by-laws, animal control, health and building regulation and town planning and
development services.

Parks & Recreation

Operation and maintenance of halls, recreation centres and various reserves.

Community Services

Operation of various children and youth services, state emergency services, public conveniences and cemeteries.

Waste Management

Operation of Wynyard Waste Transfer Station and rubbish collection services.

Drainage Services

Construction and maintenance of Council's Drainage Works.

Corporate Services

Operation and maintenance of Council Chambers, administration offices and depots. Items previously classified as Business
Undertakings - operation of self-funded activities including the Waratah Post Office, rental of Council owned property at
commercial rates and subdivision and sale of Council land - have been reclassified as Corporate Service activities.

Fire Levy

Collected on behalf of the State Government for statewide fire services.

Other - Not Attributable

This grouping recognises revenue and expenditure items which do not fall into any of the above functions/activities.
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Actual

2012

S

Actual

2011

$

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Wages, Salaries and Allowances 3,890,459 3,670,702

Workers Compensation 135,716 128,906

Superannuation Expenses 449,100 438,886

Annual, Sick and Long Service Leave 591,501 731,209

Other Employee Expenses 94,350 176,472

Total Direct Employee Costs 5,161,126 5,146,175

Less Amounts Capitalised 293,230 361,888

Net Employee Costs 4,867,896 4,784,287

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Land Improvements 237,368 244,846

Buildings 336,239 405,370

Furniture and Fittings 67,213 53,097

Plant and Equipment 298,807 299,900

Roads 2,061,039 1,429,267

Bridges 359,410 172,751

Drainage Works 268,346 259,653

Intangible Assets 63,115 27,412

3,691,537 2,892,296

LOSS/ (GAIN) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Disposal of assets in the ordinary course of business have given rise to the following losses

Proceeds of sale 178,773 350,583

Less: Written down vaiue of assets disposed (408,084) (570,611)

Net Gain/(Loss) on disposal (229,311) (220,028)

BORROWING COSTS

Interest - Borrowings 7,130 16,629

OTHER EXPENSES

Audit Services - External Audit 24,721 21,460

- Other Audit Services 2,250 1,000

Community Assistance Grants 32,598 37,568

Councillor's Allowances (refer to note 26) 179,202 162,387

238,771 222,415
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Actual

2012

$

Actual

2011

$

8. GRANTS

Grants were received in respect of the following:

Grants - Operating

Government funds received in relation to pensioner rates of $476,262 (2011:$425,925) were treated as rate revenue in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Grants recognised as revenue during the reporting period which were obtained on the condition that they be applied in a
specified manner but had yet to be totaily expended in that manner as at the report date were $194,720 (2011:$138,600).

The Australian Commonwealth Government provides Financial Assistance Grants to Councii for general purpose use and the
provision of local roads. On 11 May 2012 the Government announced in the Commonwealth Budget following the downturn
in the economy that, "to assist local councils with planning for the recovery and to ensure local government has maximum
certainty to begin planning their 2012-13 works programs", it would bring forward for payment to all councils in June 2012,
the first two instalments of the 2012-13 grant pool. Since 2009-10 the Commonwealth has been making early payment of the
first quarterly instalment for the following year. However, the above General Purpose and Roads Financial Assistance Grants
for 2011-12 thus include an additional instalment over that received in 2010-11. In accordance with AASB1004 Contributions,

Council recognises these grants as revenue when it receives the funds and obtains control. $1,572,122 in Financial Assistance
Grants (2011: $763,086) were received in advance in the 2011/12 financial year.

This has impacted the Statement of Comprehensive Income resulting in the Net surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations
being higher in both years by these amounts. With fewer instalments due to be received in 2012-13, the reverse effect is
expected to occur.

Roads

State Government Road Grants 1,462,563 938,955

State Government Bridge Funding 55,024 217,118

Heavy Vehicle Funding 45,322 45,322

Ballast Pit Road Gravel Pit 0 7,500

1,562,909 1,208,895

Community Services

Children Services 61,480 70,900

Other 28,645 1,600

90,125 72,500

Grants to Council as a Whole

Tax Sharing Grants 2,404,869 1,879,504

Total Operating Grant Revenue 4,057,903 3,160,899

Grants - Capital

Community Services

Wharf Precinct 1,170,000 0

Other 41,022 129,500

1,211,022 129,500

Roads

Roads to Recovery 0 395,442

0 395,442

Total Capital Grant Revenue 1,211,022 524,942

Capital Grants 1,211,022 524,942

Operating Grants 4,057,903 3,160,899

Total Grants Revenues 5,268,925 3,685,841
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2012

$
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2011
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9. CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash 5,085 3,120

Trading Account 938,051 736,985

Road Accident - Trust Account 11,724 10,634

Wynyard Tulip Festival - Trust Account 0 23,985

Short Term Deposits 7,110,971 5,600,000

8,065,831 6,374,724

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit amounts available
for discretionary or future use. This includes coverage of future commitments for infrastructure renew/ais, liabilities and
reserve funds. Council has a policy of holding the value of the previous years' general rate as a cash reserve.

Council has a corporate credit card facility with a limit of $50,000. The balance is paid in full on a monthly basis.

Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at the reporting date to the following lines of credit:

Available at reporting date - Bank Overdraft 250,000 250,000

10. CURRENT ASSETS-RECEIVABLES

Rates and Charges 223,828 141,298

Other Debtors 240,117 398,034

463,945 539,332

Council had $222,041 in rates received in advance for 2012/13 (2011/12 $189,736).

11. CURRENT ASSETS- INVENTORIES

Stores and Material 111,710 118,368

Post Office Stock 4,806 7,802

Wonders of Wynyard 18,592 20,173

135,108 146,343

12. CURRENT ASSETS-OTHER

Accrued Income 58,500 79,664

Prepayments 103,635 50,737

Security Deposits 5,000 5,000

167,135 135,401

13. NON CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land

At Fair Value 19,934,486 20,032,986

19,934,486 20,032,986

The Council valuation was carried out by the Valuer General, as at 30 June 2011 - based on current market value.
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2012

$

Actual

2011
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Land Improvements

At Cost 5,495,176 5,233,198

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,975,655) (1,738,287)

Work In Progress 1,371,725 115,240

4,891,246 3,610,151

Buildings

At Fair Value 13,704,317 13,449,518

Less Accumulated Depreciation (336,238) 0

Work in Progress 15,506 21,796

13,383,585 13,471,314

Ttie Council valuation was carried out by ttie Valuer General, as at 30 June 2011 - based on current market value.

Furniture and Fittings

At Cost 1,262,286 1,226,190

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,064,828) (997,617)

197,458 228,573

Plant and Equipment

At Cost 4,376,034 4,217,263

Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,070,343) (1,887,133)

2,305,691 2,330,130

Roads

At Fair Value 100,379,174 99,988,853

Less Accumulated Depreciation (49,081,813) (47,981,429)

Work in progress 0 0

51,297,361 52,007,424

Ttie Council valuation was carried out by Council's Engineer, Mathew Greskie, as at 30 June 2011
replacement cost

- based on depreciated

Bridges

At Fair Value 21,978,224 21,978,224

Less Accumulated Depreciation (9,973,763) (9,614,353)

Work in progress 132,995 0

12,137,456 12,363,871

The Council valuation was carried out by Auspan, as at 30 June 2011 - based on depreciated replacement cost.

Drainage Assets

At Fair Value 43,336,862 20,868,764

Less Accumulated Depreciation (18,517,477) (8,872,661)

Work in progress 30,424 13,659

24,849,809 12,009,762

The Council valuation was carried out by Council's Engineer, as at 30 June 2012 - based on depreciated replacement cost.

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 128,997,092 116,054,211
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Reconciliations;

Land

Carrying amount at beginning of year 20,032,986 17,355,450

Additions 12,800 0

Asset Recognition 0 1,011,000

Disposals (111,300) (133,000)

Transfer to Land Held for Resale 0 (52,500)

Revaluation 0 1,852,036

Carrying amount at end of year 19,934,486 20,032,986

Land Improvements

Carrying amount at beginning of year 3,610,151 3,523,741

Additions 1,518,463 331,256

Depreciation (237,368) (244,846)

Carrying amount at end of year 4,891,246 3,610,151

Buildings

Carrying amount at beginning of year 13,471,314 15,703,858

Additions 269,552 295,825

Asset Recognition 0 74,605

Transfer from capital works to expenses (14,703) 0

Disposals (6,339) 0

Depreciation (336,239) (405,370)

Revaluation 0 (2,197,604)

Carrying amount at end of year 13,383,585 13,471,314

Furniture and Fittings

Carrying amount at beginning of year 228,573 204,857

Additions 36,098 76,813

Depreciation (67,213) (53,097)

Carrying amount at end of year 197,458 228,573

Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of year 2,330,130 2,356,046

Additions 396,050 517,388

Disposals (121,682) (243,404)

Depreciation (298,807) (299,900)

Carrying amount at end of year 2,305,691 2,330,130

Roads

Carrying amount at beginning of year 52,007,424 33,897,580

Additions 1,541,862 1,662,970

Asset Recognition 0 3,428,396

Derecognition of Assets (39,408) 0

Disposals (151,478) (180,525)

Depreciation (2,061,039) (1,429,267)

Revaluation 0 14,628,270

Carrying amount at end of year 51,297,361 52,007,424
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Bridges

Carrying amount at beginning of year 12,363,871 6,957,975

Additions 132,995 0

Depreciation (359,410) (172,751)

Asset Recognitions 0 1,510,008

Revaluation 0 4,068,639

Carrying amount at end of year 12,137,456 12,363,871

Drainage

Carrying amount at beginning of year 12,009,762 12,153,331

Additions

Disposals

471,607

(17,284)

129,766

(13,682)

Depreciation (268,346) (259,653)

Revaluation 12,654,072 0

Carrying amount at end of year 24,849,811 12,009,762

NGN CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At Cost

Less Accumulated Amortisation

Work in progress

449,921

(199,923)

27,614

431,554

(136,807)

0

277,612 294,747

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at beginning of year 294,747 48,773

Additions 45,980 273,386

Amortisation (63,115) (27,412)

Carrying amount at end of year 277,612 294,747

NGN CURRENT ASSETS - RECEIVABLES

Debtors - Long Term 15,065 21,517

CURRENT LiABILITIES - PAYABLES

Trade and Other Payabies

Trade Creditors 949,620 719,741

Accrued Expenses 188,954 24

Prepaid income 0 20,513

Total Trade and Gther Payabies 1,138,574 740,278

Trust Funds & Deposits 171,987 306,078

Total Payabies 1,310,561 1,046,356

CURRENT LIABILITIES - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Secured Loans 42,492 130,667
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18. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Provisions for Annual Leave 576,432 562,547

Provision for Long Service Leave 418,816 419,147

Employee benefits - On-costs 95,814 87,758

Provision for Banked Employee Time 15,995 20,592

1,107,057 1,090,044

19. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Secured Loans 22,050 64,542

Security for Borrowings
The loans are secured over the general rates of the Council.

20. NGN CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Provision for Long Service Leave 187,811 243,380

Employee benefits - on-costs 18,781 22,148

Provision for Gravel Pit Rehabilitation 156,865 223,193

363,457 488,721

Movement in Provision for Gravel Pit Retiabilitation

Opening balance 223,193 202,232

Contributions received 2,816 20,961

Rehabilitation Works (69,144) 0

156,865 223,193

The present values of employee entitlements not expected to be settled within twelve months of balance date have been
calculated using the following weighted averages:

Assumed rate of increase in wage and salary rates 3.95% 4.00%

Discount rate 2.75% 2.63%

Settlement term (years) 10 10

Number of employees at year end 83 74

RESERVES

Composition:

Asset Acquisition 148,555 358,424

Public Open Space 111,737 71,862

Bridge Replacement Reserve 300,000 200,000

Asset Revaluation - Council 50,284,835 37,630,761

Financial Assets available for Sale Reserve 226,391 184,041

51,071,518 38,445,088

Movements:

Asset Acquisition

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 358,424 212,499

Amount transferred from accumulated surplus 0 145,925

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus (209,869) 0

Balance at the end of the financial year 148,555 358,424
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Public Open Space

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 71,862 21,062

Amount transferred from accumulated surplus 39,875 50,800

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus 0 0

Balance at the end of the financial year 111,737 71,862

Bridge Replacement Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 200,000 0

Amount transferred from accumulated surplus 100,000 200,000

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus 0 0

Balance at the end of the financial year 300,000 200,000

Asset Revaluation - Council

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 37,630,761 19,279,420

Revaluation Assets 12,654,074 18,351,341

Balance at the end of the financial year 50,284,835 37,630,761

Financial Assets available for Sale Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 184,041 0

Fair Value Adjustment 42,350 184,041

Balance at the end of the financial year 226,391 184,041

Nature and Purpose of Reserves;

Asset Acquisition Reserve

The amount standing to the credit of the Asset Acquisition Reserve resulted from prior period allocation of accumulated
surplus for the purpose of identifying the surplus set aside for specific works to be conducted in future years. The reserve
will be released to accumulated surplus when the specific works are undertaken. The balance in this account at 30 June
2012 represents amounts to be spent on specific works to be undertaken in the Sisters Beach community.

Public Open Space Reserve

The amount standing to the credit of the Public Open Space Reserve resulted from prior period allocation of accumulated
surplus for the purpose of identifying the surplus set aside for public open space works to be conducted in future years.
The reserve will be released to accumulated surplus when the specific works are undertaken.

Bridge Replacement Reserve

The amount standing to the credit of the Bridge Replacement Reserve resulted from prior period allocation of accumulated
surplus for the purpose of identifying the surplus set aside for replacement of bridges to be conducted in future years.

The reserve will be released to accumulated surplus when the specific works are undertaken.

Asset Revaluation Reserves

This amount standing to the credit of the Asset Revaluation Reserve resulted from periodic revaluation of Assets.

Financial Assets available for Sale Reserve

The available-for-sale financial asset reserve was established to capture the fair value movements in Council's Water
Corporation investment.
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RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR YEAR TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus/(Deficit) for Year 1,876,152 6,641,441

Items not involving Cash

Depreciation expense 3,691,537 2,892,296

Recognition of assets/Donated assets (289,748) (6,024,009)

3,401,789 (3,131,713)

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Receivables and other Assets 236,654 (143,788)

Payables 77,657 (25,978)

Provisions (108,251) 127,212

Inventories 11,235 6,833

217,295 (35,721)

investing Activity

LossAProfit) on disposal of Non-Current Assets 229,311 220,028

Distributions from Water Corporation (26,998) (26,412)

Capital Grants (1,211,022) (524,942)

(1,008,709) (331,326)

Cash flows from Operating Activities 4,486,527 3,142,681

CONTINGENT ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Council holds bank guarantees for the following:

Building, frontage, landscaping/subdivision 150,245 74,661

These guarantees have not been recognised as assets as it is uncertain, and unlikely, that Council will require these funds.

The Councii is presentiy involved in several confidential legal matters, which are being conducted through Council's solicitors.

As these matters are yet to be finalised, and the financial outcomes are unable to be reliably estimated, no allowance for
these contingencies has been made in the financial report.

24. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

(a) Capital Commitments

Not later than one year 194,720

(b) Finance Lease Commitments

Council held no finance lease commitments as at 30 June 2012.

(c) Operating Lease Commitments

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date are payable as foilows:-

Not later than one year 16,209 16,209

Later than one year and not later than five years 24,602 40,812

Council leases equipment under non-canceliable operating leases. Leases generally provide Council with a right of renewal.
Lease payments do not include any contingent rentals.

(d) Operating Expense Commitments

Not later than one year 713,428 260,484
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25. SUPERANNUATION

Council makes superannuation contributions for a number of its employees to the Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund, which is

a sub fund of the Quadrant Superannuation Scheme. The Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund has been classified as a multi-
employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assets and liabilities are pooled and are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is
unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As provided under paragraph 32(b) of AASB119
Employee Benefits, Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

At the present time Council contributes 9.5% of employees' gross income to the Fund. Assets accumulate in the fund to

meet member benefits as they accrue, and if assets within the fund are insufficient to satisfy benefits payable, the Council is
required to meet its share of the deficiency.

Bendzulla Actuarial Pty Ltd undertook the last actuarial review of the Fund at 30 June 2011. The review disclosed that
at that time the net market value of assets available for funding member benefits was $57,588,247, the value of vested
benefits was $52,794,839, the surplus over vested benefits was $4,793,408 and the value of total accrued benefits was
$57,330,437. These amounts relate to all members of the fund at the date of valuation and no asset or liability is recorded in
the Quadrant Superannuation Scheme's financial statements for Council employees.

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefits for the Fund were:

Net Investment Return 0% p.a. for 2011/12 and 7.0% p.a. thereafter
Salary Inflation 4.0% pa

Price Inflation n/a

The actuarial review concluded that:

1. The value of assets of the Quadrant Defined Benefit Fund was adequate to meet the liabilities of the Fund in respect of
vested benefits as at 30 June 2011.

2. The value of assets of the Fund was adequate to meet the value of the liabilities of the Fund in respect of accrued
benefits as at 30 June 2011.

3. Based on the assumptions used, and assuming the Employer contributes at the ievels described below, the value of the
assets is expected to continue to be adequate to meet the value of the liabilities of the Fund in respect of vested benefits
at all times during the period up to 30 June 2014.

The Actuary recommended that in future the Council contribute 9.5% of salaries in 2012/13,10.5% of salaries in 2013/14,
and 11% of salaries in 2014/15.

The Actuary will continue to undertake a brief review of the financial position of the Fund at the end of each financial year
to confirm that the contribution rates remain appropriate. The next full triennial actuarial review of the Fund will have an
effective date of 30 June 2014 and is expected to be completed late in 2014 or early in 2015. Council also contributes to
other accumulation schemes on behalf of a number of employees, however the Council has no ongoing responsibility to
make good any deficiencies that may occur in those schemes.

During the year Council made the required superannuation contributions for all eligible employees to an appropriate
complying superannuation fund as required by the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.

The amount of contributions paid to Quadrant during the reporting period was $337,758 ($347,985 in 2011).

Council also contributes to a number of other superannuation funds for its employees. None of these funds has a defined
benefits superannuation plan and therefore Council is not responsible for any deficiencies that may occur. Council
contributions paid to 17 other funds was $111,219 ($90,967 in 2011).

2012 2011

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE $ $

a) Allowances 179,202 162,387

b) Register of Interests -

Interests of Councillors notified to the General Manager in respect of any body or organisation with which the Council has
significant financial dealings:

Cr. Robert Walsh (Mayor) No Interest Declared
Cr. Alwyn Friedersdorff (Deputy Mayor) No Interest Declared
Cr. Gary Bramich No Interest Declared
Cr. Mary Duniam No Interest Declared
Cr. Clayton Hawkins No Interest Declared
Cr. Darren Fairbrother No Interest Declared

Cr. Colleen Dibley No Interest Declared

Cr. Vaughan Pendlebury No Interest Declared
Cr. Albert (Francis) Ransley No Interest Declared
Cr. John Smith No Interest Declared

Cr. David Moore No Interest Declared

Cr. Kevin Deakin No Interest Declared
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27. SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

For the year ending 30 June 2012, Bloomin' Tulips became amalgamated with Council. The balance for the year ending 30
June 2011 as a Special Committee of Council was $23,984.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments Note Accounting policy Terms and conditions

Financial assets

Cash and cash

equivalents

Cash on hand, at bank and in cash

management accounts are valued at face
value.

Interest is recognised as it accrues.
Investments are held to maximise interest

returns of surplus cash.

The weighted average interest rate return
on operating accounts at 30th June 2012

was 3.5% (4.25% in 2010/2011).

The weighted average interest rate
return on term deposit investments at
30th June 2012 was 5.00% (6.12% in

2010/2011).

Receivables 10 An impairment loss is not recognised on
rates receivable.

An allowance for impaired debts is
recognised on other debtors when there
is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has occurred.

Collectability of overdue accounts is
assessed on an ongoing basis.

Unpaid rates represent a charge against
the rateable property that will be
recovered when the property is next sold.

General debtors are unsecured and

arrears do not attract interest.

Financial liabilities

Trade and other

payables

16 Liabilities are recognised for amounts
to be paid in the future for goods and
services provided to Council as at balance
date whether or not invoices have been

received.

General Creditors are unsecured, not

subject to interest charges and are
normally settled within 30 days of invoice
receipt.

Interest-bearing loans 17 Loans are carried at their principal Borrowings are secured by way of

and borrowings amounts, which represent the present mortgages over the general rates of the
value of future cash flows associated with Council.

servicing the debt.
The weighted average interest rate

Interest is accrued over the period it on borrowings is 5.00% (4.55% in

becomes due and recognised as part of 2010/2011).

payables.

Bank Overdraft Overdrafts are recognised at the principal
amount. Interest is charged as an
expense as it accrues.

The overdraft is subject to annual review.
It is secured by a mortgage over Council's
general rates. The interest rate at balance
date was 10.08%

(a) Financial Risk Management Risk Exposures

Risk Management policies and processes

The Council has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

Market Risk

The General Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Council's risk management
framework. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse risks that Council may be exposed to, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Council has continued to develop its risk
management framework within the organisation and has embedded risk management across the organisation as a whole.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Council if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from trade and other receivables, cash and investments.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for impairment losses,
represents the Council's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or other security.
Reference should be made to Notes 9,10 and 15 for the carrying amounts of the Council's financial assets at reporting date.
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Council's policy In relation to receivables Is summarised below.

Debtors of the Council are required to settle their accounts within specified terms (as detailed in Note 1 (s)).

Impairment Losses

The foliowing table provides an ageing of the Council's trade and rate receivables (excluding non current receivables) at the
reporting date:

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Trade receivables Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

Not past due 186,859 0 345,853 0

Past due 0-30 days 17,280 0 23,943 0

Past due 31-60 days 9,113 0 9,499 0

Past due 61-90 days 9,573 0 4,515 0

More than 90 days 17,292 0 14,224 0

Total trade receivables 240,117 0 398,034 0

Rates receivable 223,828 0 141,298 0

Total receivables $463,945 $0 $539,332 $0

An allowance for impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired.
No allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables has been recognised at 30 June 2012.

All rates receivable are in excess of 90 days. No allowance for impairment ioss is recognised as unpaid rates represent a
charge against the rateabie property that will be recovered when the property is next sold.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Council
manages this risk by cash forecasting to maintain adequate liquidity levels and cash holdings. Council also has an unused
overdraft facility.

The debenture loans of Council are secured by trust deed and the total loan borrowings are iimited to borrowings approved
by Treasury. In accordance with section 80 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) the borrowing capacity of the
Council is limited as foilows:

• Except with the approvai of the Minister, a council may not borrow additional money for any purpose if the annual
payments required to service the totai borrowings would exceed 30% of its revenue of the preceding financial year; and

• Grants made to a council for specific purposes are to be excluded in calculating 30% of the revenue of the council.

The current annual payments of loans by Council equate to 0.90% of the revenue of the preceding financial year
(2011 -1.57%).

73



Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

The following tables detail the undiscounted cash flows payable by the Council by remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities, it should be noted that as these are undiscounted and include estimated Interest payments, totals may
not reconcile to the carrying amounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position:

Less than

1 year 1-5 years

More than

5 years

Total

contractual

cash flows

Carrying
amount

30 June 2012

Payables 1,310,561 1,310,561 1,310,561

Financial liabilities 43,888 22,050 0 65,938 64,542

Total 1,354,449 22,050 0 1,376,499 1,375,103

30 June 2011

Payables 1,046,356 0 0 1,046,356 1,046,356

Financial liabilities 137,826 60,088 5,850 203,764 195,209

Total $1,184,182 $60,088 $5,850 $1,250,120 $1,241,565

The Council has not defaulted on or breached the conditions of any loans payable recognised at balance date.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The objective of market risk management is
to manage and control market risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return to the Council.

The primary market risk that the Council is exposed to is interest rate risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are subject to floating interest rates. Any variations in future cash flows from interest rate
movements are expected to have an immaterial effect on the Council's revenue.

Council obtains loans with competitive fixed interest rates or rates subject to review at specified dates to manage its
exposure to interest rate risk.

The exposure of interest rate risk and the effective Interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised
and unrecognised, at balance date are as follows:

2012

Fixed interest maturing In:

Floating One year Over 1 to More than Non-Interest
Interest rate or less 5 years 5 years bearing Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 951,740 7,110,971 - 3,120 8,065,831

Trade and other receivables - 4,119 6,730 468,161 479,010

Accrued revenue - - - 58,500 58,500

Investment in water corporation - - - -  39,529,369 39,529,369

Total financial assets 951,740 7,115,090 6,730 -  40,059,150 48,132,710

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - - 1,138,574 1,138,574

Trust funds and deposits - - - 171,987 171,987

Interest-bearing loans and
borrowings

- 37,092 - 27,450 64,542

Total financial liabilities - 37,092 - 1,338,011 1,375,103

Net financial assets (liabilities) 951,740 7,077,998 6,730 38,721,139 46,757,607

74



2011

Floating

interest rate

Fixed interest maturing in:
One year Over 1 to More than

or less 5 years 5 years

Non-interest

bearing Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 771,604 5,600,000 - - 3,120 6,374,724

Trade and other receivables - 12,453 10,849 - 537,547 560,849

Accrued revenue - - - - 79,664 79,664

Investment in water corporation - - - - 39,487,019 39,487,019

Total financial assets 771,604 5,612,453 10,849 - 40,107,350 46,502,256

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payabies - - - - 740,278 740,278

Trust funds and deposits - - - - 306,078 306,078

Interest-bearing loans and

borrowings

- 130,667 64,542 - - 195,209

Total financial liabilities - 130,667 64,542 - 1,046,356 1,241,565

Net financial assets (liabilities) 771,604 5,481,786 (53,693) - 39,060,994 45,260,691

Interest rate risk on deposits is managed by adopting practices that ensures:

• Conformity with State and Federai reguiations and standards,

• Adequate safety,
• Appropriate liquidity

At the reporting date the Council had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest rate risk:

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

Financial assets

Cash at bank and on hand 951,740 771,604

Short term investments 7,110,971 5,600,000

Total 8,062,711 6,371,604

Financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 0 0

Total 0 0

Net Total 8,062,711 $6,371,604

Sensitivity Analysis of Council's Exposure to Possible Ct)anges in Interest Rates

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the reporting date.
The analysis assumes all other variables remain constant and was performed on the same basis for 2011.

At 30 June 2012, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, profit and equity would have been
affected as follows:

Surplus/(Deficit)

2011/12 2010/11 2011/12

Equity

2010/11

-t-1% (100 basis points) $80,627 $63,747 $80,627 $63,747

- 0.5% (50 basis points) $(40,314) $(31,874) $(40,314) $(31,874)
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The movements in surplusAdeflcit) are due to higher/lower interest costs from variable rate debt and cash balances,

(b) Net Fair Values and Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques.
These include reference to quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments and discounted cash flow analysis.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Council for similar financial instruments.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Statement of Financial
Position, are as follows:

Fair Values

30 June 2012

Carrying amount Fair Value

30 June 2011

Carrying amount Fair Value

$ $ $ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 954,860 954,860 774,724 774,724

Short term investments 7,110,971 7,110,971 5,600,000 5,600,000

Receivables 479,010 479010 560,849 560,849

Investment in Water Corporation 39,529,369 39,529,369 39,487,019 39,487,019

Accrued revenue 58,500 58,500 79,664 79,664

48,132,710 48,132,710 46,502,256 46,502,256

Financial liabilities

Payables 1,310,561 1,310,561 1,046,356 1,046,356

Interest bearing liabilities 64,542 64,542 195,209 195,209

Other liabilities 0 0 0 0

1,375,103 1,375,103 1,241,565 1,241,565

Net financial assets 46,757,607 46,757,607 45,260,691 45,260,691

Carrying amounts classified as: 30 June 2012 30 June 2011

$ $

Financial assets

Loans and receivables 537,510 640,513

Cash and cash equivalents 8,065,831 6,374,724

Available for Sale Financial Assets 39,529,369 39,487,019

48,132,710 46,502,256

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,375,103 1,241,565

1,375,103 1,241,565

Net financial assets / (liabilities) 46,757,607 45,260,691
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(b) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

• Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within level one that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

• Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

30 June 2012

Available for sale financial assets 39,529,369 39,529,369

30 June 2011

Available for sale financial assets 39,487,019 39,487,019

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Value Movements

2012

$

2011

$

Opening Balance 39,487,019 27,284,712

Gains (iosses) recognised in ottier comprehensive income: 42,350 0

Net change in fair value of investment in Cradle Mountain Water 0 12,202,307

Closing Balance 39,529,369 39,487,019

29. INVESTMENT IN WATER CORPORATION

In February of 2008 State and Local Government reached agreement to establish three Local Government owned, vertically
integrated businesses providing bulk, distribution and retail water and sewerage services, and a common service provider
subsidiary company. The Water and Sewerage Corporations Act 2008 (Corporations Act) was subsequently enacted and
received Royal Assent on 13 June 2008.

Full transfer of water and sewerage assets, liabilities and staff to the new corporations took place on 1 July 2009. From that
date, responsibility for the provision of water and sewerage services moved from local councils to the three new regional
water and sewerage corporations (trading as Cradle Mountain Water, Ben Lomond Water and Southern Water). A fourth
company provides common services and support to the three regional corporations (trading as Onstream).

Council has classified this asset as an Available-for-Sale financial asset as defined in AAB139 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement and has followed AASB132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and AASB7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to value and present the asset in the financial statements.

There is no active market for the investment and so it is valued at Council's share of total equity as at each balance date.
Changes in the fair value are recognised through the Comprehensive Income Statement each year.

Council's ownership interest of 12.10% in Cradle Mountain Water is based on the Final Treasurer's Allocation Order in 2011.
Council does not have significant influence to allow it to use the equity method to account for this interest.

2012

$

2011

$

Opening balance 39,487,019 27,284,712

Fair Value initial adjustment on assets held for resale 0 12,018,266

Fair Value adjustments on available for Sale Assets 42,350 184,041

Total investment in water corporation 39,529,369 39,487,019
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. SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

2012 Drainage

Transport

Infrastructure

Parks and

Recreation Facilities

REVENUE

Direct

Rates 465,709 0 0

User Charges 1,225 6,278 54,725

Contributions 0 0 29,766

Government Grants 0 1,572,009 1,193,672

Other 141,769 147,979 373

608,703 1,726,266 1,278,536

EXPENDITURE

Direct

Employee Costs 29,313 713,291 390,670

Materials & Contracts 94,675 912,974 715,534

Interest 0 2,346 1,111

Other 46,034 151,478 0

170,022 1,780,089 1,107,315

Indirect

Indirect Expenditure 36,049 485,546 334,225

Capital Costs

Depreciation 268,345 2,437,647 341,072

Opportunity Costs of Capital 2,236,483 5,788,858 2,624,745

2,504,828 8,226,505 2,965,817

Competitive Neutrality Costs 40,292 2,396 55,356
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2011 Drainage
Transport

Infrastructure

Parks and

Recreation Facilities

REVENUE

Direct

Rates 444,113 0 0

User Charges 6,143 4,594 75,915

Contributions 0 0 36,722

Government Grants 0 1,604,337 129,500

Other 0 4,938,405 746

450,256 6,547,336 242,883

EXPENDITURE

Direct

Employee Costs 26,518 483,339 344,085

Materials & Contracts 82,708 1,152,836 663,772

Interest 0 7,818 2,509

Other 41,032 180,525 0

150,258 1,824,518 1,010,366

Indirect

Indirect Expenditure 44,936 751,154 407,946

Capital Costs

Depreciation 259,653 1,618,900 455,312

Opportunity Costs of Capitai 1,080,879 5,709,956 2,449,936

1,340,532 7,328,856 2,905,248

Competitive Neutrality Costs 6 707,754 52,605
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(a) the financial report set out on pages 1 to 38 presents fairly the financial position of the Waratah-Wynyard Council as at
30 June 2012 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, including Australian Interpretations, and

(b) the financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

Greg Winton
General Manager

Date: 14 August 2012
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^ Audit Office
Tasmanian

Level 4. Execiiltve Buildine, IS Murray Street, Hobart, Ibsmania, 7000
Postal Address: GPO Box 851, Hobart, Ibstnania, 7001

Phone: 03 6226 0100 | Fax: (86226 0199
Email: admin@auiit.tas,£Dveu

Web: www.au(it.las,gov,au

4 July 2012

CrR Walsh

Mayor

Waratah-Wynyard Council

P 0 Box 168

WYNYARD TAS 7325

Dear Cr Walsh

Waratah-Wynyard Council - Interim Management Letter - Financial Report for the Year Ended
30 June 2012

An interim audit of Waratah-Wynyard Council's (Council) accounting procedures and transactions

for the period July 2011 to April 2012 has been completed in accordance with our annual
arrangements letter.

The principal objective in the interim audit phase is to test the operation of the controls within the
main financial systems relevant to the preparation of the financial statements. This enables an
assessment to be made whether the controls will prevent material errors in transactions
generated from systems to remain undetected. In addition to testing relevant controls, or where
there is no reliance on controls, we also perform substantive procedures during the interim audit
phase.

The interim audit was completed satisfactorily with no material weaknesses in internal controls or
errors in transactions noted.

This interim management report forms part of a continuing dialogue between the Council and the
Auditor-General. It is emphasised that not all aspects of the Council's financial activities have been
examined during our interim visit. Consequently, it may be appropriate at the final audit to refer
to various matters occurring during the period covered by this interim audit.

This audit report was prepared solely for the use of Council and is not intended to include every
matter, whether large or small, that has come to our attention. For this reason I believe that it would
be inappropriate for this report to be made available to third parties and, if such a third party were to
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obtain a copy without my prior written consent, I would not accept any responsibility for any reliance
that they might place on it.

Please note that a copy of this letter has been provided to the Minister for Local Government, The
Hon. B A Green MR, in accordance with section 19(2) of the Audit Act 2008.

Appreciation is expressed for the assistance given by your staff during this phase of the audit.

If you have any queries regarding the audit or any other matters in the interim, please contact Mr
Rob Luciani on (03) 6336 2217.

Yours sincerely

H M Blake

Auditor-General

Copy for: Mr G Winton, General Manager
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